
 
CDRPA Meeting Agenda December 14th, 2021 Page 1 of 2 

 
 

  
                   

Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central Washington 
 

 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

Meeting Agenda 
December 14th, 2021 

9:00 am 
In order to maximize social distancing related to COVID-19, the meeting 

will be held at the CTC and remotely using Zoom Virtual Conference. 
 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
 
*Note: When the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority meeting is called to order, the Port of Chelan 
County and Port of Douglas County meetings are simultaneously called to order. 

  
II. INTRODUCTIONS 
 
III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
IV. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
CDRPA: Approval of Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Minutes of November 22nd, 
2021 Meeting; Minutes of November 30th, 2021 Tri Commission Meeting; and Check 
Register Pages #2021-39-#2021-41, including Electronic Transfers 
 

V. ACTION ITEMS  
1.  CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-25 Approving 2022 Board Meeting Schedule  
2.  POCC Resolution No. 2021-08 Approving 2022 Board Meeting Schedule 
3.  PODC Resolution No. 2021-06 Approving 2022 Board Meeting Schedule  
4.  CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-24 Proposed 2022 CEO Delegation of Authority  
5. Authorization to Enter into Purchase & Sale Agreement with Christopher Lytle – Property   

Adjacent to Pangborn Airport 
6. Lytle Property – Ownership Allocation Memo 
7. Torres Property – Ownership Allocation memo 

 
VI. CDRPA INFORMATIONAL ITEMS (Board may take action on any items listed) 

8. Update on Aviation Ramp Glycol System & MALSR Timeline (9:15 am) 
9. Terminal Building Parking Lot Activity Report 

10. Chelan Airport Update – Mayor Bob Goedde (10:00 am) 
 

VII. MISCELLANEOUS STAFF REPORTS 
• CEO 
• Director of Finance & Administration 
• Director of Airports 
• Director of Economic & Business Development 
• Public Works & Capital Projects Manager 
• Property & Maintenance Manager 
• CTC Manager 

 
VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
IX. REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS 



 
CDRPA Meeting Agenda December 14th, 2021 Page 2 of 2 

 
X. ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION: An Executive Session may be called during the meeting.  The purpose 

must be announced and is limited by RCW 42.30.110.  Examples include: (1) to discuss with legal 
counsel litigation, potential litigation and/or legal risks (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)); (2) to consider the 
acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when public knowledge regarding such consideration 
would cause a likelihood of increased price (RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)); and (3) to consider the 
minimum price at which real estate will be offered for sale or lease when public knowledge regarding 
such consideration would cause a likelihood of decreased price (final action selling or leasing public 
property shall be taken in a meeting open to the public)(RCW 42.30.110(1)(c)); and (4) to evaluate 
the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public 
employee(RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)) 
 

XII. OPTIONAL TOUR – Streamline Products Warehouse – Lineage South 
 

XIII. ADJOURN 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  The agenda is tentative only. The Board of Directors may add, delete, or postpone items and may take 
action on any item not on the agenda (This does not apply during a “special” meeting). The Directors may also move 
agenda items during the meeting. If you wish to address the Regional Port Authority on a non-agenda or an agenda 
item, please raise your hand to be recognized by the President.  When you have been recognized, give your name and 
address before your comments. The Board of Directors are committed to maintaining a meeting atmosphere of mutual 
respect and speakers are encouraged to honor this principal. 

 
The Port Authority office is ADA compliant. Please contact the Administrative Office at 509-884-4700 at least three (3) 
days in advance if you need any language, hearing or physical accommodation.  



 November 22nd, 2021 Page 1 of 7  

 

             
    
            

            Board of Directors 
 Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

   Special Meeting Minutes 
  November 22nd, 2021 

9:00 am 
 
 

Present:  Directors    
 JC Baldwin, Director (Zoom)  Jim Huffman, Director   
 Rory Turner, Director   W. Alan Loebsack, Director   
 Donn Etherington, Director         Mark Spurgeon, Director   
 
 Staff 
 Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer   Monica Lough, Dir. of Finance & Admin.  
 Trent Moyers, Director of Airports  Ron Russ, Property Manager 
 Ron Cridlebaugh, Dir. of Economic Dev.   Craig Larsen, Economic Dev. Manager 
 Stacie de Mestre, Capital Projects Manager  Quentin Batjer, Legal Counsel    
 Tricia Degnan, CTC Manager (Zoom)  Cami Harris, Executive Assistant 
 Sarah Deenik, Communications Specialist (Zoom) Bealinda Tidd, Accounting Specialist (Zoom) 
 Laura Camarillo Reyes, Admin. Assistant (Zoom) 
     
 Guests: 

Senator Brad Hawkins  Mayor Bob Goedde, City of Chelan (Zoom) 
Representative Keith Goehner (Zoom)  Blake McClimon (Zoom) 

  
 
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (CDRPA) Special Meeting was called to 
order at 9:00 am.  
 
Introductions were made. 
 
Conflict of Interest: None 
 
CDRPA CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda consisting of Minutes of 
November 9th, 2021 Commission Meeting; & October 2021 Commission Calendar, was 
presented and the following action was taken:  
 

Motion No.  11-05-21 CDRPA 
  Moved by:    Rory Turner 
  Seconded by:  Jim Huffman 

To approve the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda 
consisting of Minutes of November 9th, 2021 Commission Meeting; & 
October 2021 Commission Calendar, as presented. 
        
      Motion passed 6-0 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 November 22nd, 2021 Page 2 of 7  

 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
As required by RCW 53.35.020, Public Hearing notices were published on November 
2nd and November 9th, 2021 in the Wenatchee World. 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY PROPOSED 2021 SUPPLEMENTAL 
BUDGET – PUBLIC HEARING 
Commissioner Loebsack opened the public hearing at 9:08 am and an opportunity for public 
comment was provided; however, no public comments were received. Commissioner 
Loebsack closed the public hearing at 9:08 am. 
 
PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY PROPOSED 2022 BUDGET – PUBLIC HEARING 
Commissioner Turner opened the public hearing at 9:09 am and an opportunity for public 
comment was provided; however, no public comments were received. Commissioner Turner 
closed the public hearing at 9:09 am. 
 
PORT OF DOUGLAS COUNTY PROPOSED 2022 BUDGET – PUBLIC HEARING 
Commissioner Spurgeon opened the public hearing at 9:10 am and an opportunity for public 
comment was provided; however, no public comments were received. Commissioner 
Spurgeon closed the public hearing at 9:10 am. 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY PROPOSED 2022 BUDGET – PUBLIC 
HEARING 
Commissioner Loebsack opened the public hearing at 9:11 am and an opportunity for public 
comment was provided; however, no public comments were received. Commissioner 
Loebsack closed the public hearing at 9:11 am. 
 
 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 
PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY ACTION ITEMS: 
 
Adoption of Port of Chelan County 2022 Tax Levy – Lough provided information on the 
Port of Chelan County Tax Levy for 2022.  Discussions ensued and the following actions were 
taken:  
 

Motion No.  11-06-21 POCC 
  Moved by:    Donn Etherington 
  Seconded by:  JC Baldwin 

To adopt POCC Resolution No. 2021-05 Setting the 2022 
Levy Limit and banking said Levy amount. 
        
                Motion passed 3-0. 

 
Motion No.  11-07-21 POCC 

  Moved by:    Donn Etherington 
  Seconded by:  JC Baldwin 

To adopt POCC Resolution No. 2021-06 Authorizing a 1% Levy Increase 
for 2022 subject to said Levy Limit being banked.   
        
                  Motion passed 3-0. 

 
Motion No.  11-08-21 POCC 

  Moved by:    Donn Etherington 
  Seconded by:  JC Baldwin 

To authorize the Executive Director to sign and submit the 2022 Levy 
Certification. 
                     
     Motion passed 3-0. 

 



 November 22nd, 2021 Page 3 of 7  

 
 
 
 
Adoption of Port of Chelan County 2022 Budget – Lough presented the proposed Port of 
Chelan County Budget for 2022. Discussions ensued and the following actions were taken:  
 

Motion No.  11-09-21 POCC 
  Moved by:    Donn Etherington 
  Seconded by:  JC Baldwin 

To adopt POCC Resolution No. 2021-07 Approving the Port 
of Chelan County 2022 Final Budget. 
    
                 Motion passed 3-0. 
               

 
PORT OF DOUGLAS COUNTY ACTION ITEMS: 
 
Adoption of Port of Douglas County 2022 Tax Levy – Lough provided information on the 
Port of Douglas County Tax Levy for 2022.  Discussions ensued and the following actions were 
taken:  
 

Motion No.  11-10-21 PODC 
  Moved by:    W. Alan Loebsack 
  Seconded by:  Jim Huffman 

To adopt PODC Resolution No. 2021-03 Setting the 2022 Levy Limit and 
Banking said Levy Amount. 
        
                Motion passed 3-0. 

 
Motion No.  11-11-21 PODC 

  Moved by:    W. Alan Loebsack 
  Seconded by:  Jim Huffman 

To adopt PODC Resolution No. 2021-04 Authorizing a 1% Levy Increase 
for 2022 Subject to said Levy being Banked. 
        
                     
     Motion passed 3-0. 

 
Motion No.  11-12-21 PODC 

  Moved by:    Jim Huffman 
  Seconded by:  W. Alan Loebsack 

To authorize the Executive Director to Sign and Submit the 2022 Levy 
Certification.       
                     
     Motion passed 3-0. 

 
 
Adoption of Port of Douglas County 2022 Budget – Lough presented the proposed Port 
of Douglas County Budget for 2022. Discussions ensued and the following actions were taken:  
 

Motion No.  11-13-21 PODC 
  Moved by:    W. Alan Loebsack 
  Seconded by:  Jim Huffman 

To adopt PODC Resolution No. 2021-05 Approving the Port of Douglas 
County 2022 Final Budget. 
        
                Motion passed 3-0. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 November 22nd, 2021 Page 4 of 7  

 
 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY ACTION ITEMS: 
 
CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-21 Adopting Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 2021 
Supplemental Budget – Lough presented the proposed Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Supplemental Budget for 2021.  Discussion ensued and the following action was taken:  
    

Motion No.  11-14-21 CDRPA 
  Moved by:    Mark Spurgeon 
  Seconded by:  Jim Huffman 

To adopt CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-21 Approving the 
2021 Supplemental Budget. 
        
               Motion passed 6-0. 
 

 
CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-22 Adopting Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 2022 
Final Budget – Lough presented the proposed Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Final 
Budget for 2022.  Discussion ensued and the following action was taken:  
    

Motion No.  11-15-21 CDRPA 
  Moved by:    Rory Turner 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spureon 

To adopt CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-22 Approving the 
2022 Final Budget. 
        
               Motion passed 6-0. 

 
 
CDRPA 2022 Rates & Charges – Kuntz reviewed the proposed 2022 Rates & Charges for 
Regional Port properties noting some highlights and changes over prior year. Discussion 
ensued and the following action was taken:   
 

Motion No.  11-16-21 CDRPA  
  Moved by:    Jim Huffman 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon 

To adopt CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-23 Setting 2022 
CDRPA Rates & Charges. 
 
       Motion passed 6-0. 
 

 
Malaga Site Due Diligence – de Mestre reported one Statement of Qualifications was 
received in response to the Regional Port’s RFQ – Site Due Diligence. The submitting firm, 
Environmental Systems Design, met all the requirements, and subsequently submitted a price 
proposal. Staff requested approval to issue Environmental Systems Design a Professional 
Services Agreement for the Malaga Site Due Diligence, in an amount not to exceed $189,085. 
The following action was taken: 

 
Motion No.  11-17-21 CDRPA  

  Moved by:    Rory Turner  
  Seconded by:  Jim Huffman 

To authorize the CEO to sign a Professional Services Agreement with 
Environmental Systems Design for Malaga Property Site Due Diligence in an 
amount not to exceed $189,085. 
 
       Motion passed 6-0. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 November 22nd, 2021 Page 5 of 7  

 
 
 
 
Meeting was reordered to provide an opportunity for public comment. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  An opportunity for public comment was provided; and the following 
public comments were made:  
 
Senator Brad Hawkins and Representative Keith Goehner provided comments on the 
Washington State Redistricting Commission’s proposed Legislative District maps. The 
Commission was unable to adopt a Districting Plan by the November 15th, 2021 deadline. The 
Washington Supreme Court now has until April 30th, 2022 to decide on the new Districting 
Plan. Senator Hawkins and Representative Goehner encouraged the Regional Port to draft a 
brief or letter to the Court requesting Chelan & Douglas Counties remain in the 12th 
Legislative District.  
 
 
Director Loebsack called for a 5-minute break at 10:45 am; meeting reconvened at 
10:50 am. 
 
 
ACTION ITEMS CONTINUED: 
 
Cashmere Mill Site Wetlands Improvements – Beaver Mitigation Project – Kuntz 
reported during the final walkthrough of the recent Beaver Pond Leveler Installation Project, 
Olin Excavation and Regional Port staff located an additional beaver dam. Staff requested 
authorization to sign a change order with Olin Excavation increasing the overall project 
budget by $2,500. Discussion ensued and the following action was taken:  
 

Motion No.  11-18-21 CDRPA  
  Moved by:    Mark Spurgeon 
  Seconded by:  Rory Turner 

To authorize the CEO to sign a Change Order with Olin Excavation and to 
increase the overall Cashmere Mill Site Wetland Improvement Project Budget 
by $2,500. 
       Motion passed 6-0. 

 
 
Final Design & Bidding Services – MALSR Project Pangborn Airport - Kuntz provided 
an update on the MALSR Project including status of land acquisition. The MALSR Project is 
included in the 2022 Capital Budget. Staff requested approval to proceed with the Final 
Design & Bidding phase of the project. Discussion ensued on the proposed schedule for the 
project including the delivery of the lighting equipment, and flight check procedures. The 
Board expressed concern with the proposed schedule and ask that it be modified for the 
project to be completed in the fall of 2022. The following action was taken:  
 

Motion No.  11-19-21 CDRPA  
  Moved by:    Donn Etherington 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon 

To authorize the CEO to sign Task Order 21-03 with T.O. Engineers for 
Final Design & Bidding Services for the MALSR Project in the amount of 
$119,700, with Board proposed schedule modifications as discussed. 
 
       Motion passed 6-0. 

     

 
 
 
 
 
 



 November 22nd, 2021 Page 6 of 7  

 
 
 
 
MISC STAFF REPORTS: 
 

Kuntz provided information and updates including:  
 Discussion on proposed 2022 WPPA membership dues. 
 Reviewed upcoming WPPA meeting schedule. 
 Received Actapio Lease Termination Settlement funds in the amount of $1.9 million. 
 Recently toured a Kidder Matthews real estate agent through various Regional Port 

properties including the Actapio space at the CTC. Staff will draft a proposed RFQ to 
contract with a real estate consultant to market the Acaptio space. More information 
will be brought to the Board at an upcoming meeting. 

 Update on Marson & Marson Lumber. They have interest in leasing a 3.19 acre parcel 
from the Regional Port for a laydown yard near their new building. 

 Reported Airport Maintenance/ARFF employee Jorge Ramos will be leaving the 
Regional Port for a firefighter position with Douglas County Fire District No. 2. 

 Update on potential tenant for the 3306 Building; the company found an alternative 
location in the private sector. 

 Reviewed a proposed Regional Port Vaccination Policy. More information will be 
brought to the Board at an upcoming meeting. 

 Meeting with Representative Mike Steele in Chelan tomorrow. 
 

Lough provided information and updates including: 
 Reminded Commissioners to provide proof of COVID-19 vaccination to WPPA prior to 

the Annual Meeting; and to submit payment for spouse/guest attendance at WPPA 
sponsored events to the Regional Port prior to attendance. 

 Announced COVID-19 booster shots can now be scheduled with Confluence Health. 
 

Moyers provided information and updates including: 
 New FBO General Manager position has been posted on the website and other various 

outlets. 
 Discussion on Waterville Airport Lighting Project (LED vs. solar lights). 
 Amended Douglas County Fire District No. 2 contract goes into effect December 1st. 
 Update on the new TSA Explosive Device Detection System installation timeline. 
 New Virtower systems will be installed at Chelan, Waterville, and Mansfield Airports in 

December. 
 

de Mestre provided information and updates including:  
 Provided a PUD 5th Street Campus Marketing update; the campus will be marketed as a 

single property vs. breaking it up into smaller pieces. 
 Discussion on CTC surplus equipment. 
 Announced Pybus recently hired Travis Hornby as their new General Manager. 

 
Larsen provided information and updates including: 

 Update on Pybus Incubator Space tenant. 
 

REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS: Did not review. 
 

ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS: None. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 12:45 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 November 22nd, 2021 Page 7 of 7  

 
 
 
 
Signed and dated this 14th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
  
  
  _________________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director     Jim Huffman, Director 
 
 
    _________________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
___________________________________  _________________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director     W. Alan Loebsack, Director 



 November 30th, 2021 Page 1 of 2 

 
          
       

                 Tri-Commission Meeting 
             Special Meeting Minutes 

       Confluence Technology Center and Zoom Virtual Conference 
        November 30th, 2021 1:00 pm 

   
Present:  Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Chelan County PUD 
 JC Baldwin, Commissioner   Randy Smith, Commissioner 
 Mark Spurgeon, Commissioner  Dennis Bolz, Commissioner 
 Jim Kuntz, CEO Ann Congdon, Commissioner 
 Ron Cridlebaugh, Dir. of Econ. Dev. Steve McKenna, Commissioner 
 Cami Harris, Executive Assistant Garry Arsenault, Commissioner  
  Steve Wright, General Manager 
   Justin Erickson, Managing Director Dist. Svcs. 
 Chelan County Kirk Hudson, Incoming General Manager 
 Kevin Overbay, Commissioner Rachel Hansen, Sr. Communications Strategist 
 Bob Bugert, Commissioner Bob Shane, Telecom & Fiber Manager  
 Tiffany Gehring, Commissioner Rebekah Neumann, Clerk of the Board 
 Sasha Sleiman, Housing Program Coord.  Shaun Seaman, Gov’t & External Affairs 
  Teka Sellers, Customer Outreach 
 Elected Officials          
                        Senator Brad Hawkins Representative Keith Goehner 
 Bob Goedde, City of Chelan Jim Fletcher, City of Cashmere 
 Carl Florea, City of Leavenworth  Jerrilea Crawford, City of East Wenatchee 
                    

            Guests 
 Laura Merrill, City of Wenatchee  Mitchell Roland, Wenatchee World   
 Jason Taylor, Cherry Creek Radio Jerri Barkley, Wen. Valley Chamber of Commerce 

            Renee Swearringan, Entiat Chamber  Steve Wilkinson, Chelan Valley Housing Trust 
               
 
The Tri Commission Meeting and respective Special Commission Meetings were called to order 
and/or reconvened at 1:00 pm. The Pledge of Allegiance was conducted and roll call was 
taken. Justin Erickson, Chelan County PUD, facilitated the meeting. 

 
2022 LEGISLATIVE SESSION PERSPECTIVES – Senator Brad Hawkins and Representative 
Keith Goehner provided perspectives on the upcoming 2022 Legislative Session. They also 
provided an update on the recent Redistricting Commission Legislative maps. 
 
2022 TRI COMMISSION LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES – 
 

 Public Works Board/Trust Fund – Commissioner Baldwin provided an update on 
Public Works Board/Trust Fund. 

 Fiber Buildout & Funding – Bob Shane provided an update on fiber buildout and 
funding. 

 Regional Infrastructure – Jim Kuntz provided an update on the water line extension 
in Malaga. 

 
TRI-COMMISSION UPDATES:  
 

 Chelan County PUD Commission  
o Public Power Benefits Program 
o Low Income Housing 
o Substation Update 

 
 Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

o PUD 5th Street Campus Marketing Update 
o Pangborn Airport - Various Updates on Capital Projects and Air Service 
o Malaga Update 

 



 November 30th, 2021 Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 
 Chelan County  

o Housing Trust Update 
o Broadband Action Team Discussion  

 
CHELAN COUNTY MAYORS UPDATE –Chelan County Mayors/staff provided updates and 
information. 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:  No comments were made. 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS: No comments were made. 
 
The Tri Commission Meeting and respective Special Commission Meetings adjourned 
at 2:45 pm. 
 
Signed and dated this 14th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
  
 
_______________________________                    ____ Not in Attendance__________ 
JC Baldwin, Director Jim Huffman, Director 
 
 
__ Not in Attendance______________                    _____________________________  
Rory Turner, Director                                             Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
__Not in Attendance_______________                     __Not in Attendance____________ 
Donn Etherington, Director   W. Alan Loebsack, Director  























_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-25 Establishing Meetings for 2022   Page 1 of 2 

 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-25 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL 
PORT AUTHORITY BOARD SCHEDULING DATES AND 

TIMES OF REGULAR MEETINGS FOR 2022 
 
 

Whereas, the Port of Chelan County and the Port of Douglas executed an Interlocal 
Agreement on June 11th, 2019 forming the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, the 
purpose of which is to operate the Ports and the Pangborn Memorial Airport as a consolidated 
operation;  

 
Whereas, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board consists of the three 

Commissioners of the Port of Chelan County and the three Commissioners of the Port of 
Douglas County; 

 
Whereas, in a regular Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board meeting, the 

members discussed a regular meeting schedule for the calendar year 2022; 
 
Now, Therefore, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority hereby resolves as 
follows: 
 

1. Meeting Schedule and Locations. The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority regular 
meetings for calendar year 2022 shall be held at Confluence Technology Center, 285 
Technology Way, Wenatchee, WA on the 2nd and 4th Tuesday of each month. Due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority meetings may be held via 
Zoom Virtual Meeting. 

 
2. Meeting Time. All regular meetings of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

Board shall begin at 9:00 a.m. 
 

3.  Special Meetings. Any meeting of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board 
held on a day other than the regular meeting days as set forth above shall be a special 
meeting of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board and the meeting shall be 
called and notice shall be given as required in RCW 42.30.080, as the same exist now or 
may be hereafter amended. 

 
4. Simultaneously Called Meetings. Any meeting of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port 

Authority Board shall also mean simultaneous meetings of the Port of Chelan County and 
Port of Douglas County. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-25 Establishing Meetings for 2022   Page 2 of 2 

 
Adopted by the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority at a regular 
meeting thereof held this 14th day of December, 2021. 
 

_____________________________  ___________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director     Jim Huffman, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director     W. Alan Loebsack, Director 
 
 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Port of Chelan County Resolution No. 2021-08 Establishing Meetings for 2022   Page 1 of 1 

PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-08 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY 

SCHEDULING DATES AND TIMES OF REGULAR 
MEETINGS FOR 2022 

 
Whereas, the Port of Chelan County and the Port of Douglas County executed an 

Interlocal Agreement on June 11th, 2019 forming the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, 
the purpose of which is to operate the Ports and Pangborn Memorial Airport as a consolidated 
operation. Each meeting of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority will also be a public 
meeting of the Port of Chelan County Commission; and  

 
Whereas, the Port of Chelan County Commission desires to adopt a regular meeting 

schedule that is identical to the regular meeting schedule for the Chelan Douglas Regional 
Port Authority; and 

 
Whereas, in a regular Port of Chelan County Commission meeting, the members 

discussed a regular meeting schedule for the calendar year 2022; 
 
Now, Therefore, the Port of Chelan County Commission hereby resolves as follows: 
 

1. Meeting Schedule and Locations. The Port of Chelan County regular meetings for 
calendar year 2022 shall be held at the Confluence Technology Center, 285 Technology 
Way, Wenatchee, WA on the 2nd and 4th Tuesday of each month. Due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, the Port of Chelan County meetings may be held via Zoom Virtual Meeting. 

 
2. Meeting Time. All regular meetings of the Port of Chelan County Commission shall 

begin at 9:00 a.m. 
 

3.  Special Meetings. Any meeting of the Port of Chelan County Commission held on a 
day other than the regular meeting days as set forth above shall be a special meeting of the 
Port of Chelan County Commission and the meeting shall be called and notice shall be given 
as required in RCW 42.30.080, as the same exist now or may be hereafter amended. 

 
Adopted by the Port of Chelan County Commission at a regular meeting thereof held this 
14th day of December, 2021. 
 

_____________________________    
JC Baldwin, Commissioner      
 
 
_____________________________    
Donn Etherington, Commissioner      
 
 
_____________________________        
Rory Turner, Commissioner 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Port of Douglas County Resolution No. 2021-06 Establishing Meetings for 2022   Page 1 of 1 

PORT OF DOUGLAS COUNTY 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PORT OF DOUGLAS COUNTY 

SCHEDULING DATES AND TIMES OF REGULAR 
MEETINGS FOR 2022 

 
Whereas, the Port of Douglas County and the Port of Chelan County executed an 

Interlocal Agreement on June 11th, 2019 forming the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, 
the purpose of which is to operate the Ports and Pangborn Memorial Airport as a consolidated 
operation. Each meeting of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority will also be a public 
meeting of the Port of Douglas County Commission; and  

 
Whereas, the Port of Douglas County Commission desires to adopt a regular meeting 

schedule that is identical to the regular meeting schedule for the Chelan Douglas Regional 
Port Authority; and 

 
Whereas, in a regular Port of Douglas County Commission meeting, the members 

discussed a regular meeting schedule for the calendar year 2022; 
 
Now, Therefore, the Port of Douglas County Commission hereby resolves as follows: 
 

1. Meeting Schedule and Locations. The Port of Douglas County regular meetings for 
calendar year 2022 shall be held at the Confluence Technology Center, 285 Technology 
Way, Wenatchee, WA on the 2nd and 4th Tuesday of each month. Due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, the Port of Douglas County meetings may be held via Zoom Virtual Meeting. 

 
2. Meeting Time. All regular meetings of the Port of Douglas County Commission shall 

begin at 9:00 a.m. 
 

3.  Special Meetings. Any meeting of the Port of Douglas County Commission held on a 
day other than the regular meeting days as set forth above shall be a special meeting of the 
Port of Douglas County Commission and the meeting shall be called and notice shall be 
given as required in RCW 42.30.080, as the same exist now or may be hereafter amended. 

 
Adopted by the Port of Douglas County Commission at a regular meeting thereof held this 
14th day of December, 2021. 
 

_____________________________    
Mark Spurgeon, Commissioner      
 
 
_____________________________    
W. Alan Loebsack, Commissioner     
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jim Huffman, Commissioner      





_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 1 of 15 
 

 
 
 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-24 

 
DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

CALENDAR YEAR 2022 
 
 
 Whereas, RCW 53.12.270 authorizes the Commission to delegate administrative 
powers and duties to the Executive Director, and 
 
 Whereas, the Port Commissions of both the Port of Chelan County and the Port of 
Douglas County have in the past adopted policy directives delegating administrative 
authority to its respective Executive Director for the purpose of expeditious administration of 
the Ports, and 
 
 Whereas, both Port Commissions have from time to time found it necessary to 
amend and revise such directives due to changes in law and/or operations, and 
 

Whereas, both Port Commissions shall, from time to time, employ a Director of 
Finance and Administration, who shall act as the managing official of the Port in the 
absence of the Executive Director, and 

 
Whereas, on June 11, 2019 both the Port of Douglas County and the Port of Chelan 

County entered into an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for the functional consolidation of 
Port Finances, Management and Operations, and 

 
Whereas, the functionally consolidated organization was named the Chelan Douglas 

Regional Port Authority (‘Port Authority’), with both Port Commissions combining into one 
governing body, the Board of Directors, consisting of three commissioners from the Port of 
Chelan County and three commissioners from the Port of Douglas County, and 

 
Whereas, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority will use RCW 53.12.270 in 

similar fashion to delegate administrative powers and duties to the Chief Executive Officer, 
and 
 
 Whereas, the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority now 
wishes to provide a master policy directive on the delegated administrative powers and 
duties of the Chief Executive Officer, or in the absence of the Chief Executive Officer, to the 
Director of Finance, 
 
 Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas 
Regional Port Authority as follows: 
 
 Section 1.   The master policy directive of the Board of Directors, as set forth 
herein, is adopted for the purpose of establishing the delegated administrative powers and 
duties of the Chief Executive Officer and the Director of Finance and Administration.  This 
policy directive will remain in effect until December 31, 2022, unless it is extended prior to 
that date. 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 2 of 15 
 

 
 Section 2.   All portions of resolutions, policies or motions heretofore approved by 
the Board of Directors pertaining to the subject matters contained in this resolution are 
hereby repealed. 
 
 Section 3. The Revised Code of Washington 53.08.090 authorizes Board of 
Directors to delegate to the Chief Executive Officer, by resolution, the authority to sell and 
convey port district property with a value of $10,000 or less.  State law requires that this 
authority be renewed by resolution annually by the Board of Directors.  Said authority is 
hereby authorized by the adoption of this resolution.  See Section 4, Article XVIII. 
 
 Section 4. The following policy directive on the delegated administrative powers 
and duties of the Chief Executive Officer and the Director of Finance and Administration is 
hereby adopted: 
 
I. PREAMBLE 

A. The following policy is adopted by the Board of Directors for the purpose of 
establishing the administrative powers and duties of the Chief Executive 
Officer who is responsible for Port Authority operations. Any Board directives 
or initiatives shall be implemented through the Chief Executive Officer and 
shall be made only by the Board acting as a body of the whole at a public 
meeting.   

B. The phrase “administration and Port Authority operations”, as used herein, 
means the regular day-to-day business of the Port Authority, including but not 
limited to:  operating, maintaining, and administering all of its properties, 
leasehold properties, facilities services and programs, including the 
implementation of construction work, alterations, repairs, maintenance, and 
improvements of the Port Authority’s real estate and physical facilities, and 
the necessary planning incidental thereto; the conduct of financial accounting 
and legal matters as they relate to the Port Authority’s operation; the 
administration of all other operations which include personnel administration 
(i.e., hiring, firing, wages and benefits, training, grievance procedures, and 
task and project assignments, etc.); the execution and administration of 
contracts; publishing legal notices; and all other pertinent authorized 
functions.  As it pertains to personnel administration, the Chief Executive 
Officer’s implementation shall be consistent with the Chelan Douglas 
Regional Port Authority Personnel Policies as adopted by the Board of 
Directors on September 10th, 2019, as may be amended. 

C. The Chief Executive Officer shall inform the Board regarding significant 
information, incidents, and business transactions by methods agreeable to 
the Board.  The Chief Executive Officer shall report to the Board those 
actions made in reliance on this delegation.  The Chief Executive Officer, or in 
the absence of the Chief Executive Officer, the Director of Finance and 
Administration, is the managing official of the Port Authority, appointed by the 
Board, and holds office as their representative.  Nothing herein should be 
construed in any way as abrogating the duties and the responsibilities of the 
Board. 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 3 of 15 
 

II. FINANCIAL 

A. Budgets – The adoption of Port Authority budgets, including supplemental 
budgets, are the responsibility of the Board of Directors.  The Chief Executive 
Officer has no authority to adopt budgets, but the Chief Executive Officer 
shall be responsible for submitting to the Board of Directors proposed 
budgets, together with all necessary supporting data.  The Chief Executive 
Officer shall also be responsible to ensure all legal notices are placed in 
newspapers regarding budget hearings and adoptions. 

B. Expenditures – The Chief Executive Officer is given the authority to spend 
Port Authority funds without prior Board approval subject to: 

1. The expenditure must fall within a budgeted expense category. 
2. The expenditure must not cause the amount of a budgeted expense 

category to be exceeded. 
3. Expenditures in accord with Emergency Public Works Contracts. 
4. Any applicable financial limits established by this Resolution. 

C. Management of Port Authority Finances – The Chief Executive Officer or the 
Director of Finance and Administration is authorized to transfer funds 
between operating funds and investment funds to meet Port Authority 
financial obligations.   

D. Imprest Working Funds (Petty Cash/Change Funds) - The Chief Executive 
Officer is authorized to establish imprest working funds (petty cash/change 
funds), provided that the total cumulative amount of all such funds does not 
exceed $2,000. 

E. Banking Services – The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to negotiate for 
banking services and enter into agreements for such services.  Procedures 
shall be established concerning the deposit/disbursal of Port Authority funds 
recognizing the requirements cited in RCW 53.36.010 and providing for an 
adequate system of internal control. 

F. Investments – The investment of Port Authority funds, which are those funds 
not required for immediate expenditures, shall be invested by the Port 
Authority Treasurer, in accordance with applicable laws relating to investment 
of public funds and consistent with Board approved Investment Policies.  The 
Chief Executive Officer shall be authorized to determine the amount of funds 
to be invested in order to ensure adequate cash flow to meet Port Authority 
obligations. 

G. Other Obligations – The Chief Executive Officer shall have the authority to 
incur obligations and make commitments on behalf of the Port Authority, so 
long as they are for budgeted items, except, the Chief Executive Officer: 

1. May not issue promissory notes. 
2. May not issue bonds. 
3. May not incur obligations or make commitments in excess of those 

amounts specifically provided for elsewhere in this resolution. 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 4 of 15 
 

 
III. POLICY GOVERNING REAL PROPERTY 

A. Types of Agreements – The following directives apply to all agreements for 
use of Port Authority real property, including but not limited to leases, license 
agreements, concession agreements, rental agreements, operating 
agreements, memorandums of understanding and use agreements. 

B. Lease Arrangements – All real property, when available for leasing, shall be 
leased only under an appropriate written instrument approved by the Board of 
Directors.  Except where the Board has delegated authority to the Chief 
Executive Officer here in Section 4, III, prior to the execution of such 
instrument, the Chief Executive Officer shall have secured the approval of the 
Board, provided for proper security, submitted the Agreement to Port 
Authority Counsel for approval (if the Port Authority’s standard agreement 
form is not used) and follow all other applicable laws. 

C. Chief Executive Officer’s Authority to Sign Lease and Rental Agreements 
without Prior Board Approval – The Chief Executive Officer may, without prior 
Board approval, execute lease and rental agreements subject to all of the 
following conditions: 

1. Agreements having a term (including any options) of five years 
duration or less and lease payments of $5,000 per month or less (not 
including state leasehold tax) and the Port Authority’s financial 
obligation for building improvements does not exceed $50,000. 

2. The Port Authority’s standard agreement form is used, except for 
provisions not applicable and state and federal leases that require the 
use of the tenant’s lease form as long as the content of the lease form 
does not materially change the Port Authority’s intent in its standard 
lease form.  

3. The appropriate lease surety must be in place which shall be defined 
as a minimum of one month’s rental, not including state leasehold tax. 

4. The amount of rent shall be in accordance with rental rate objectives 
of the Board. 

5. The use to which the property may be put by the tenant shall be 
expressly stated and shall be in accordance with the goals, directives, 
and policies adopted by the Board for the same or similar Port 
Authority property or properties. 

6. The Chief Executive Officer shall provide the Board with a monthly 
written report of all agreements executed. 

  
D. Lease Modifications; Extensions – The Chief Executive Officer may, without 

prior Board approval, make minor modification to existing leases including 
payment deferrals, due dates for payments, adjustments to the leased 
premises, and the like, where the increase or decrease in annual revenue 
projected to be generated does not exceed $50,000.  The Chief Executive 
Officer may, without prior Board approval, grant an extension of the current 
term of an existing lease for a period not greater than six (6) months. The 
Chief Executive Officer shall advise the Board of any such action within a 
reasonable period of time, not later than the next regular Board meeting. 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 5 of 15 
 

E. Sublease Procedures – Leases, concession agreements, operating 
agreements, and related contracts between the Port Authority and its tenants, 
and other parties shall include restriction on the subleasing and require at a 
minimum the prior written consent of the Port Authority to such subleases.  
Subject to the provisions of the lease or agreement, the Chief Executive 
Officer is authorized to grant consents to subleases, which for the purposes 
hereof shall include suboperating agreements and subconcession 
agreements. 

F. Lease Renewals – The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to renew leases 
provided:  such renewals are provided for in the current lease; all other 
substantive terms of the lease remain unchanged; rental adjustments 
provided for in the lease are made; and the lease is in good standing. The 
Chief Executive Officer shall have the authority in Section 4, Article III(D) to 
make modifications to a lease as part of a lease renewal. 

G. Lease Enforcement and Lease Terminations – The Chief Executive Officer is 
authorized to enforce all terms and conditions of Port Authority leases.  The 
Chief Executive Officer is authorized to issue all appropriate notices of default 
and/or notices of termination with regard to Port Authority leases.  The Chief 
Executive Officer is authorized to terminate any lease under the terms and 
conditions therein.  Upon termination, the Chief Executive Officer is 
authorized to take all steps necessary to retake possession of the leasehold 
and recover for the Port Authority all sums due the Port Authority pursuant to 
the lease and the law.  The Chief Executive Officer shall keep the Board 
informed with respect to lessees that are issued default notices or termination 
notices. 

H. Realtors Compensation Program – The Chief Executive Officer is authorized 
to make payments for real estate services consistent with the Board of 
Directors adopted Real Estate Guidelines per Motion #09-10-19 as may be 
amended. 

I. Other Documents – The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute the 
following instruments, subject to the terms specified herein: 

1. Temporary and permanent easements for purposes of utility 
installments only. For easements granted by the Port Authority, all 
easements will require the grantee at its own expense to relocate, 
lower or otherwise protect the utility to accommodate future 
development of the Port Authority, its agents, or assigns unless 
otherwise authorized and directed by the Board.  

2. Business Licenses and Licenses to Operate. 
3. If the Board has previously approved a grant application, the Chief 

Executive Officer may execute all related agreements associated with 
the Port Authority obtaining local, state or federal grant funds, unless 
said grant exceeds $1.5 million, which shall require Board approval 
prior to acceptance.  

 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 6 of 15 
 

4. Binding site plans, short plats, building permits, and similar 
documents, and applications therefore, consistent with Port Authority 
master plans or otherwise where the Board has approved the subject 
development. 

5. Changes in name of responsible party to the lease if all other 
conditions including primary ownership, remain the same. 

6. Lease assignments for purposes of collateral. 
7. Estoppels, attornments and non-disturbance agreements. 
8. Permits ancillary to the normal operation of the Port Authority. 
9. Liquor Control Board forms related to tenants leasing Port Authority 

property.  
10. Landlord Waiver and Consent agreements subject to legal counsel 

review. 
11. Assignments of agreements for use of Port Authority real property (as 

defined in Section 4, III. A above) where the assignment does not alter 
the underlying terms of the agreement. 

12. Authority to negotiate and enter into Right of Entry/Property Access 
Agreements to allow prospects to conduct initial investigations 
regarding any real property managed by the Regional Port. 

13. Authority to enter into Confidentiality Agreements with prospective 
businesses, only when absolutely necessary and subject to legal 
counsel review. Board shall be notified when said agreements are 
signed.  

14. Authority to manage Pangborn Airport Terminal Building Parking Lot 
consistent with Board policies including waiving late fees. 

 
IV. POLICY GOVERNING LEASE SURETY, SURETY BONDS, RENTAL DEPOSITS, 

AND INSURANCE POLICIES 

A. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to take all necessary actions on 
behalf of the Board in connection with lease surety, lease surety bonds, rental 
deposits, or insurance coverage required pursuant to any leases of the Port 
Authority, including any of the following actions: 

1. Where the lease is not in default, to release any surety, surety bond, 
or rental deposit where an adequate substitute surety or rental deposit 
has been provided. 

2. To approve any surety, surety bond, rental deposit, certificate of 
insurance, or insurance policies submitted in fulfillment of the 
requirements of any lease, including substitute or replacement 
coverage for any terminated bond, surety, or rental insurance. 

3. To approve any substitute or modifications of surety or insurance 
coverage, and to release any surety or insurance company when 
substitute or replacement insurance coverage has been provided in 
connection with any outstanding lease of the Port Authority. 

 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 7 of 15 
 

V. POLICY GOVERNING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ’S AUTHORITY FOR 
PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS AND SALES 

A. Property Acquisitions – When the Board authorizes the acquisition of real 
property by negotiated purchase or condemnation and has entered an 
agreement, the Chief Executive Officer shall take all necessary steps, 
including appraisals, environmental assessments, and surveys, if necessary, 
and signing all necessary documents to secure title of such property for the 
Port Authority consistent with the purchase and sale agreement. 

B. Property Sales – When the Board authorizes the sale of Port Authority real 
property and has entered an agreement, the Chief Executive Officer shall 
take all necessary steps to complete the transaction, including but not limited 
to ordering appraisals, surveys and accepting deposits, opening escrow and 
signing all necessary documents consistent with the purchase and sale 
agreement.   

C. Amendments – When the Board has entered a purchase and sale agreement, 
the Chief Executive Officer may approve minor modifications to the 
agreement, including but not limited to extensions to feasibility periods, 
changes to the closing date, minor modifications in the legal description 
based on survey or title work, and the like; provided that any modification of 
the price at which property is sold or purchased shall be approved by the 
Board. 

VI. POLICY GOVERNING CONTRACTS FOR PERFORMANCE OF PUBLIC WORK 

A. Public Work of $50,000 or less – The Chief Executive Officer may, without 
prior Board approval, approve plans, specifications and estimates, seek bids 
and execute small works roster contracts up to $50,000 per project subject to 
the project appearing as a line item capital project in the Port Authority budget 
or within the overall capital budget authorized limits established by the Board, 
and so long as all statutory procedures are followed. 

B. Public Work between $50,001 and $100,000 – The Chief Executive Officer 
may, without prior Board approval, approve plans, specifications and 
estimates, and seek bids on public works contracts (including small works 
roster contracts) between $50,001 and $100,000 per project subject to the 
project appearing as a line item capital project in the Port Authority budget or 
within the overall capital budget authorized limits established by the Board, 
and so long as all statutory procedures are followed. Board approval shall be 
required for awarding said contracts.  

C. Public Work in Excess of $100,001 – For projects estimated to cost in excess 
of $100,001, Board authorization to proceed shall be obtained prior to 
seeking bids. In this event, the Chief Executive Officer shall have the 
authority to approve plans, specifications and estimates associated with the 
project.  Board approval shall be required for awarding contracts.   

D. Project Close Out.  For all public work contracts entered by the Port Authority, 
the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to take all further steps to see the 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 8 of 15 
 

project through to completion including final acceptance, provided that all 
requirements of RCW 53.08.120-135 and all other applicable laws and Port 
Authority policies are met. 

 
E. Emergency Public Works Contracts – When any emergency shall require the 

immediate execution of a contract for work, the Chief Executive Officer, 
pursuant to the Procedures of RCW 39.04.020 and 39.04.280 (as it may be 
amended or succeeded), is authorized to make a finding of the existence of 
such emergency and execute any contracts necessary to respond to the 
existing emergency, provided that the Chief Executive Officer  shall, at the 
first Board meeting following the Chief Executive Officer ’s finding of the 
existence of an emergency, request Board ratification of the finding of 
emergency and any contracts awarded and/or executed pursuant to that 
finding.  From the inception of any such emergency, the Chief Executive 
Officer shall continuously advise the Board of the development of the 
emergency situation and the progress of any contracts executed to remedy 
the emergency. 

F. Change Orders – Where contracts for the performance of work have been 
awarded and under which the work is in progress, and individual changes in 
plans and/or specifications are necessitated in order to properly accomplish 
the work, the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute individual 
change orders to the contract provided all of the following conditions are met: 

1. Change orders are within the project budget established by the Board. 
2. The estimated cost of the individual changes in plans and/or 

specifications will not exceed 10% of the established project budget.  
However, when an individual change order issued under any contract 
shall cause the total cash amount of change orders in the established 
project budget to exceed a sum equal to 10% of the project budget 
amount, such change order shall not be issued without prior Board 
approval and no future change orders to said contract may be issued 
without Board approval. 

3. The contract provides for issuance of change orders. 
4. The individual change order has been approved and certified by the 

project architect or engineer as being necessary to the proper 
accomplishment of the work called for in the basic contract. 

5. Any time extension for completion of said contract which accompanies 
said change order does not exceed sixty (60) days. 

 
VII. POLICY GOVERNING ACQUISITION OF MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, AND 

SUPPLIES; UNIT PRICE CONTRACTS 

A. The Chief Executive Officer shall have the responsibility for following all 
required statutory procedures, where applicable, in connection with (i) all 
contracts for the acquisition of utilities, materials, equipment, and supplies 
and (ii) unit price contracts (RCW 53.08.120(3)).  Where utilities, materials, 
equipment, and supplies are acquired on the open market or pursuant to 
published prices or tariffs and used or are necessary in normal maintenance 
and operations of the Port Authority, no prior approval shall be required but 
where appropriate shall be approved as a part of normal monthly expenses.  



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 9 of 15 
 

The Chief Executive Officer may execute contracts for the acquisition of 
utilities, materials, equipment, and supplies and unit price contracts subject to 
the following conditions: 

1. The contract or purchase order price does not exceed Fifty Thousand 
($50,000) in a calendar year, or if specifically identified in the annual 
budget, the amount shown in such budget, and the contract provides 
for a term of no more than three years, with an option to extend the 
contract for one (1) additional year, provided that the basic contract or 
purchase order price and any contract extensions must be within 
appropriate annual budget limits.   

2. Unit price contracts must be competitively bid based on estimated 
quantities of the anticipated types of work or trades involved, and 
specify how the Port Authority will issue work assignments, work 
orders, or task authorizations.  Unit price contracts must be awarded 
to the lowest responsible bidder and must comply with the provisions 
of RCW 53.08.120(3), which includes the payment of prevailing 
wages.  

3. Unless otherwise required by law, the Chief Executive Officer shall 
determine whether and to what extent a performance bond is 
necessary. 

  
B. Emergency Contracts for Acquisition of Materials, Equipment, Supplies, and 

Services – When an emergency shall require the immediate acquisition of 
materials, equipment, supplies, and services, the Chief Executive Officer is 
authorized to make a finding of the existence of such emergency and execute 
any contract for acquisition of materials, equipment, supplies, and services 
necessary to respond to the existing emergency, provided that the Chief 
Executive Officer  shall, at the first Board meeting following the Chief 
Executive Officer’s finding of the existence of an emergency, request Board 
ratification of the finding of an emergency and any contract awarded or 
executed pursuant to the authority herein shall contain a clause which states 
that the contract is subject to ratification by the Board and that if ratification 
does not follow, the contract shall terminate, and the Contractor shall be 
compensated for his work and materials used to the time of termination. 

C. Repair and Maintenance of Equipment – The Chief Executive Officer shall be 
responsible for equipment repair and maintenance and, to that end, may use 
the Port Authority’s own labor forces or may have work done by contract.  
The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to expend such funds as are 
reasonable and necessary to keep the equipment in good order and repair. 

VIII. COMPETITIVE BIDDING REQUIREMENTS – EXEMPTIONS (See RCW 39.04.280) 

 The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to waive competitive bidding requirements 
for public works and contracts for purchases for: 

 
1. Purchases that are clearly and legitimately limited to a single source of 

supply. 
2. Purchases involving special facilities or market conditions. 
3. Purchases of insurance or bonds. 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 10 of 15 
 

4. Public works in the event of an emergency. 
 
 When the competitive bidding requirements are waived, the Chief Executive Officer 

shall require documentation be filed stating the nature of the purchase of work, and 
the justification for determining the exemption criteria was met.  The documentation 
must be available for public inspection.  

 
IX. ARCHITECTURAL, ENGINEERING, AND TECHNICAL SERVICES, INCLUDING 

SURVEYORS, INTERIOR DESIGNERS AND LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

 The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to contract with qualified architectural, 
engineering, technical testing and inspection firms, surveyors, interior designers and 
landscape architects, licensed in the State of Washington to provide such services 
as required for architectural or engineering work or small projects of the Port 
Authority.  Selection and reimbursement for such services including task orders shall 
follow all required statutory procedures and shall be consistent with normal 
established fees paid for such services.  The Chief Executive Officer may arrange for 
such services following a competitive selection process; provided the fee to the 
same firm on any single project or closely related work does not exceed the amount 
of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000), and the funds are within the approved project 
capital budget.  Board approval shall be required for contracts exceeding $50,000. 

 
X. AMENDMENTS TO ARCHITECTURAL, ENGINEERING, PROFESSIONAL, 

CONSULTANT AND PERSONAL SERVICES: 

 Where services are formally approved by the Board, increases in the approved 
contract amount may be approved by the Chief Executive Officer without prior 
approval of the Board for amounts not to exceed 10% of the last Board approved 
total, or $50,000, whichever is less, provided the funds are within the approved 
appropriate annual budget. 

 
XI. PERSONAL SERVICES 

 The Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible for obtaining personal services 
where deemed necessary in carrying out normal Port Authority operations and 
provided all applicable legal requirements are met.  The Chief Executive Officer shall 
follow Port Authority policies governing management of personal service contracts 
currently in existence or hereafter adopted. 

 
XII. LITIGATION 

A. Management and Supervision of Litigations – The Chief Executive Officer and 
the Port Authority’s Legal Counsel (appointed by the Board) shall be 
responsible for the procedures necessary for management and supervision of 
all litigation in which the Port Authority has an interest, direct or indirect.  For 
purposes of this section, “litigation” shall mean the assertion or potential 
assertion of any position, right or responsibility by or against the Port 
Authority, including actions which have been filed in any court or any quasi-
judicial or administrative forum. 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 11 of 15 
 

B. Special Legal Services – The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to retain 
such other special counsel at fees as may be negotiated to assist in the 
handling of any claims, litigation, or other matters necessary to attend to the 
legal affairs of the Port Authority, within overall budgetary constraints. 

C. Engagement of Experts – The Chief Executive Officer may engage or cause 
to be engaged, such experts as may be necessary for the orderly support of 
claims or litigation in which the Port Authority has a direct or indirect interest, 
without limitations otherwise prescribed in this resolution.  Such engagement 
shall be upon consultation given by Legal Counsel after having satisfied 
him/her that such expenditure is necessary to the adequate preparation and 
representation of the Port Authority’s position in such litigation or claim and 
shall, wherever practicable, include evaluation of the litigation or claim and an 
estimate of the probable cost of such experts.  

D. Commencing Lawsuits – The Chief Executive Officer may not commence 
litigation without the prior approval of the Board. 

 
XIII. POLICY GOVERNING ADJUSTMENT AND WRITE-OFF OF ACCOUNTS 

RECEIVABLE 

A. Definition of “Write Off” – The term “write-off” means the adjustment of the 
accounting records of the Port Authority to reflect the fact that the account is 
uncollectible in the normal course of operations.  The Chief Executive Officer 
may authorize Legal Counsel to initiate or continue with legal action to collect 
an account without regard to whether the account has been written off the 
accounting records of the Port Authority. 

B. Procedures – The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to establish 
procedures for and to write off any uncollectible account which does not 
exceed the sum of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) subject to the following 
general guidelines: 

1. Prior to writing off any account receivable or uncollectible, the Chief 
Executive Officer shall be satisfied that every reasonable effort has 
been made by the Port Authority to accomplish the collection of the 
account. 

2. Any account in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) which is 
deemed to be uncollectible shall be referred to the Board for final 
write-off, with the exception of any account that has filed for 
bankruptcy which the Chief Executive Officer may write off up to 
$25,000 per account without prior Board approval.  

3. The Chief Executive Officer shall provide the Board once per month a 
listing of all accounts that are 90 days past due. 

 
XIV. POLICY GOVERNING TRAVEL OF EMPLOYEES AND OTHER AUTHORIZED 

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE PORT AUTHORITY 

A. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to approve travel by employees 
and/or other authorized representatives of the Port Authority in order to 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 12 of 15 
 

effectuate necessary Port Authority operations, in conformity to the travel 
policy adopted by the Board (Motion #09-07-19) as may be amended, 
provided that the travel expenses are within the annual budget approved by 
the Board and provided that the Board shall be advised prior to all 
international travel (excluding Canada).  Board travel outside of the Pacific 
Northwest (Washington, Oregon and Idaho) shall be approved, in advance, at 
an open public meeting; provided, however, the Chief Executive Officer may 
authorize such travel in the event of unique or unanticipated circumstances 
and obtaining advance approval of the Board is not possible.  In this event, 
the Chief Executive Officer shall notify the entire Board at the next Board 
meeting.   

XV. POLICY GOVERNING STAFF AND EMPLOYEE ADMINISTRATION 

A. The Chief Executive Officer shall have the authority to manage all personnel 
matters for Port Authority employees and staff which include hiring, firing, 
training, grievance procedures, employee benefits, and administration of the 
employee salary schedule.  The Chief Executive Officer shall carry out these 
responsibilities according to guidelines and policies to be established by the 
Chief Executive Officer and within overall budgetary constraints.  The Chief 
Executive Officer shall also carry out these responsibilities consistent with the 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Personnel Policies as adopted by the 
Board.  

XVI. UTILIZATION OF PORT AUTHORITY EMPLOYEES 

A. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to use necessary Port Authority 
employees for operations and maintenance of facilities. 

B. The Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible for obtaining prior Board 
approval for work projects which are new construction or major modifications 
of Port Authority facilities to be carried out by Port Authority crews when the 
total estimated cost of materials exceeds Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars 
($25,000). 

XVII. RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to adopt any administrative rule or 
regulation necessary for the efficient operation of the Port Authority so long as such 
rules and regulations are reported to the Board. 

 
 
XVIII. POLICY GOVERNING SALE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY 

A. Sale of Property Pursuant to RCW 53.08.090  - The Chief Executive Officer is 
authorized, pursuant to RCW 53.08.090, to sell and convey surplus personal 
property of the Port Authority subject to the following conditions: 

1. That the market value of such personal property does not exceed 
$10,000 as may be increased by the statute; and 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 13 of 15 
 

2. That prior to any such sale or conveyance, the Chief Executive Officer 
shall itemize and list the property to be sold and make written 
certification to the Board that the listed property is no longer needed 
for Port Authority purposes;  

3. That offers for purchase are solicited from at least three (3) parties 
whenever possible or placed in a public auction; 

4. That any large block of such property having a value in excess of 
$10,000 shall not be divided into components of a lesser value and 
sold unless done so by public competitive bid; and 

5. That in no case shall surplus personal property be sold to any Port 
Authority official or employee or members of their families without the 
specific approval of the Board. 

 
XIX. INSURANCE PROGRAMS  

Comprehensive General Liability, Auto, Property, Public Officials, etc. al. 
The Chief Executive Officer shall be authorized to negotiate and obtain appropriate 
policies of insurance to cover Port Authority Property, liability, employee coverage, 
and other areas appropriately included within a comprehensive insurance program.  
The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to approve changes or modifications within 
the policies of insurance, including programs to provide self-insurance or deductible 
provisions, so long as such programs are promptly and regularly reported to the 
Board so it is kept informed of basic changes made in the overall insurance program 
of the Port Authority.  The Board has the responsibility for selecting the Port 
Authority’s insurance broker/agent. 

 
 Health Insurance 
 The Board has the responsibility for determining each year health benefits that will be 

offered to Port Authority employees.  Once benefits are determined by the Board, the 
Chief Executive Officer shall be authorized to negotiate and execute all agreements 
and instruments necessary to carry out that determination. 

 
XX. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS 

 The Chief Executive Officer is authorized, consistent with statutory limitations, to 
develop and carry out economic development programs and enter economic 
development agreements consistent with the budget.  Economic development 
programs may include advertising (including the use of advertising firms within 
budgetary authority), and promotion of the Port Authority, including its properties, 
facilities and services.  Such economic development programs shall be reviewed by 
the Board from time to time. 

 
XXI.   CHELAN AIRPORT 
 
 The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to work with the City of Chelan on all 

matters involving the jointly owned City of Chelan Airport consistent with the Joint 
Operating Agreement between the parties. 

 
 
 
 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 14 of 15 
 

XXII. ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING SERVICES 
 

Subject to Section 4(X), the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to retain necessary 
services from recognized accounting and auditing firms.  Such services may include 
the comprehensive annual financial report, audits, and appropriate accounting 
services as required, at established rates for such services in the area. 

 
XXIII. REIMBURSABLE SERVICES 

 The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to enter into agreements pursuant to which 
the Port Authority will provide reimbursable services, when such services are part of 
normal Port Authority operations or incident thereto. 

 
XXIV. GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS CONTRACTS 

The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to enter into governmental affairs 
contracts subject to said expense appearing in the budget and subject to each 
individual contract not exceeding $5,000 per month, not including reimbursable 
expenses. 

XXV. ABSENCE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  

 In addition to any other authority expressly delegated herein to the Director of 
Finance and Administration, in the absence of the Chief Executive Officer, the 
Director of Finance and Administration shall have all of the authority set forth in this 
Resolution.  When relying on this Article XXIV, the Director of Finance and 
Administration shall notify the President of the Board as soon as reasonably possible 
of the exercise of any delegated authority. 

 
XXVI. BOARD RETAINED AUTHORITY 

Except as specifically set forth by the Board in the preceding portion of this 
Resolution, or unless specifically set forth by the Board in the preceding portion of 
this Resolution, or unless specifically authorized by other action of the Board, the 
Board shall retain the following authority: 

 
a. To approve leases, contracts, purchases, change orders, and other agreements 
exceeding the delegation set forth above; 

 
b. To borrow funds; 
 
c. To establish levy rates; 

 
d. To oversee the work of the internal auditor and legal counsel; 

 
e. To establish levels of compensation and adjustments, including benefits, for the 
Chief Executive Officer; 

 
f. To approve check registers , budgets, and amendments thereto (including line-
item adjustments); 

 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-24 Delegation of Authority 2022   Page 15 of 15 
 

g. To determine and establish the direction, goals, and policies of the Port Authority, 
unless specific direction for the determination or implementation has been given to 
the Chief Executive Officer or to others; 
 
h. To change the duties and responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer at any 
time by the specific action of the Board, including amendment or modification to this 
Resolution; and 

 
i. To delegate specific authority, whether or not described herein, to a Board Member 
or another employee of the Port Authority, by motion made and approved at an open 
public meeting (e.g. delegating authority to a Board Member to approve any changes 
made to an agreement that has been approved by the Board; delegating signature 
authority to a Port Authority employee overseeing a particular project). 
 

  
ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority this 
14th day of December, 2021, and duly authenticated in open session by the signatures of 
the Board of Directors voting in favor thereof. 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director     Jim Huffman, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director 
 
 
 



































_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Lytle Property Ownership Allocation Memo  Page 1 of 1 
 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
OWNERSHIP ALLOCATION MEMO 

REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED AFTER JANUARY 1, 2020 
DOUGLAS COUNTY, WA PARCEL #22210840006 (Lytle) 

 
 

On November 12, 2019, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board of Directors adopted 
a policy governing capital investments.  Section 3 of that policy states that if there is an acquisition 
of real property after January 1, 2020, the Board of Directors is required to adopt an Ownership 
Allocation Memo as a means to allocate respective ownership interests in the property in the 
event of a dissolution. 
 
The Board of Directors seeks to purchase approximately 4.76 acres of real property from 
Christopher Lytle adjacent to the Airport, and within the Airport Runway Protection Zone, identified 
as Douglas County, WA Assessor’s Tax Parcel Number 22210840006.   Funds currently held by 
the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority will be used for the entirety of the purchase which is 
estimated at $647,535.  Neither the Port of Chelan nor the Port of Douglas will be issuing separate 
debt or entering into a joint financing plan for the capital purchase. 
 
Because the source of funds for the purchase will not be directly from either port district, the real 
estate will be owned by the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority. 
 
In the event of dissolution of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, the parcel will be 
allocated to the two Port Districts based on the percentage of 2021 budgeted tax receipts, which 
calculates to 25% ownership by the Port of Douglas and 75% ownership by the Port of Chelan. 
 
However, in the event the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority is able to secure a Federal 
Aviation Administration grant to reimburse the Regional Port for 90% of the acquisition cost, then 
ownership percentages shall be 50% by the Port of Douglas and 50% by the Port of Chelan. 
 
Signed and dated this 14th day of December, 2021. 
 

 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
 

 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director     Jim Huffman, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director 
 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Torres Property Ownership Allocation Memo  Page 1 of 1 

 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
OWNERSHIP ALLOCATION MEMO 

TORRES REAL PROPERTY ACQUISTION 
REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED AFTER JANUARY 1, 2020 

CHELAN COUNTY, WA PARCEL #222135100071 
 
 
 

On November 12, 2019, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board of Directors 
adopted a policy governing capital investments. Section 3 of the policy addresses real 
property acquired after January 1, 2020. Under that section, the Board of Directors is required 
to adopt in advance an Ownership Allocation Memo as a means to allocate the percentage 
ownership of real property. 
 
The Board of Directors has an interest in purchasing the Torres Property located in Malaga, 
Washington with a parcel number of 22213510007. The property encompasses 
approximately 10 acres with an anticipated acquisition price of $625,800. 
 
Because this property is located within Chelan County and the Port of Chelan County has the 
financial resources to acquire the property using its own resources, the Board hereby 
approves the acquisition of 100% of the Torres Property by the Port of Chelan County. 
 
Once acquired, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority shall manage the Torres 
Orchards Property pursuant to and consistent with CDRPA Resolution No. 2020-02. 
 
Signed and dated this 14th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________  ___________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director     Jim Huffman, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director     W. Alan Loebsack, Director 
 
 
 



Terminal Parking Activity 

Report May – November 2021 



Gross Fees
26,776.76$       1,477.84$                 
31,168.79$       1,854.92$                 
31,242.32$       2,066.51$                 
32,798.53$       2,258.54$                 
38,534.00$       2,758.89$                 
38,174.00$       2,553.90$                 
33,595.14$       2,458.46$                 

232,289.54$     15,429.06$               

Other
Scan to Pay Apps Website Widget Text to Pay Kiosk EGOV

May 203 69 81 208 6 567
June 196 133 54 222 14 619
July 239 140 60 202 7 648
August 275 168 52 178 5 678
September 277 261 48 217 10 813
October 294 204 56 214 12 780
November 246 202 45 178 13 684
Total 1730 1177 396 1419 67 4789

Paid Paid Amount YTD Outstanding
May 180 2,031.00$             
June 210 2,189.00$             
July 129 1,376.00$             
August 175 1,881.00$             
September 165 1,698.00$             
October 225 2,439.00$             
November 103 1,153.00$             
Total 1187 12,767.00$            511

Delinquency Rate:

Note: The Regional Port's management of the terminal parking began in May 2021.

5,972.00$                                  
2.5065%

July 29,175.81$                                

# of Transactions by Payment Method 
Arrive Flash

Total

Number of Tickets
YTD Outstanding Amount

September 35,775.11$                                

November 31,136.68$                                

June 29,313.87$                                

August 30,539.99$                                

Total 181,240.38$                              

October 35,620.10$                                

May 25,298.92$                                

Pangborn Memorial Airport Terminal Parking Lot
2021 Year‐to‐Date

Overall Parking Revenues
Net



Num. of transactions

Income: Long Term Widget 10,740.00$       204

Long Term Scan to Pay Apps 11,600.00$       240

Short Term Scan to Pay Apps 1,625.00$         54
23,965.00$       498

Fees:
Short Term 111.73$            
Long Term 1,952.79$         

2,064.52$         8.61%

Net: 21,900.48$       

Num. of transactions

Income: Text to Pay $2,190.00 56
Kiosk $8,780.00 214

10,970.00$       270

Customer Fees: Text to Pay 19.60$              
Kiosk -$                  

19.60$              

Merchant Fees: 417.59$            

Net: 10,552.41$       

Payable to Flash (Pre‐Tax): 19.60$              

Income: Credit Card 1,865.00$         165 LT 1,662.00$                          
Cash/Check 574.00$            60 ST 777.00$                             

2,439.00$         225 2,439.00$                          

Merchant Fees: USIO 71.79$              

Net: 2,367.21$         

Monthly Parking Permit Holders $800.00

38,174.00$       
35,620.10$       

Other

Total Gross Revenue Received:
Total Net Revenue Received:

OmniPark Enforcement
PayMyNotice Webpage or Mail in Payment

Notices by Lot

Month of October 2021
Arrive

Tap to Pay Apps & Widget on PMA Website

Flash Parking
Text to Pay & Terminal Kiosk (Long Term Only)



Num. of transactions

Income: Long Term Widget 10,590.00$       202

Long Term Scan to Pay Apps 10,190.00$       188

Short Term Scan to Pay Apps 1,482.00$         58
22,262.00$       448

Fees:
Short Term 112.18$            
Long Term 1,942.42$         

2,054.60$         9.23%

Net: 20,207.40$       

Num. of transactions

Income: Text to Pay $1,720.00 45
Kiosk $7,690.00 178

9,410.00$         223

Customer Fees: Text to Pay 16.10$              
Kiosk -$                  

16.10$              

Merchant Fees: 332.07$            

Net: 9,077.93$         

Payable to Flash (Pre‐Tax): 16.10$              

Income: Credit Card 736.00$            81 LT 870.00$                             
Cash/Check 417.00$            22 ST 283.00$                             

1,153.00$         103 1,153.00$                          

Merchant Fees: USIO 71.79$              Approx. TBD

Net: 1,081.21$         

Monthly Parking Permit Holders $770.14

33,595.14$       
31,136.68$       Approx. pending Fees

Total Gross Revenue Received:
Total Net Revenue Received:

OmniPark Enforcement
PayMyNotice Webpage or Mail in Payment

Notices by Lot

Other

Month of November 2021
Arrive

Tap to Pay Apps & Widget on PMA Website

Flash Parking
Text to Pay & Terminal Kiosk (Long Term Only)



Parking 
Transactions

Plane 
Departures

May 567 4,215 13.45% 62
June 619 4,849 12.77% 72
July 648 5,749 11.27% 93

August 678 5,112 13.26% 78
September 813 4,593 17.70% 83
October 780 4,150 18.80% 68
November 684 3,404 20.09% 48

Total 4,789 32,072 504

15.33%

Enplanements

Pangborn Memorial Airport Terminal Parking Lot
2021 Year‐to‐Date
Flight Data Comparison

Average Enplanement %



Credit Net to Credit Net to Credit Net to
Gross Card Fees CDRPA Gross Card Fees CDRPA Gross Card Fees CDRPA

May 1,475.85       214.22         860.51          40,292.05     1,010.96     26,611.83     39,916.82     1,095.11      26,393.24     
June 2,661.46       197.06         1,659.61       37,591.50     1,088.48     24,664.86     34,758.78     1,087.52      22,808.57     
July 4,134.35       125.00         2,766.10       36,938.08     1,016.83     24,386.20     34,821.94     1,093.80      22,887.38     
August 8,138.50       166.75         5,440.08       33,294.64     988.63        21,956.70     37,072.09     1,041.48      24,484.45     
September 9,080.66       401.58         5,943.00       36,857.08     919.57        24,349.08     39,698.71     1,137.98      26,184.68     
October 13,355.26     407.12         8,874.90       44,336.91     1,091.00     31,037.51     42,902.96     984.37         30,089.91     
November 15,032.32     489.51         9,930.66       44,111.57     1,451.86     33,541.18     42,066.54     1,171.87      32,132.09     
December 13,803.05     425.87         9,095.33       41,556.29     1,500.63     31,655.94     35,229.21     1,255.81      26,732.21     
January 12,975.99     396.23         8,532.73       34,184.84     1,290.41     25,967.41     35,603.51     1,090.48      27,151.52     
February 19,494.00     301.21 13,093.30     40,893.53     1,138.28     31,275.66     38,916.82     894.46         29,910.90     
March 25,932.59     1,052.38      16,770.43     16,685.77     1,312.32     12,212.61     46,664.51     1,053.35      35,917.38     
April 27,158.20     945.13 17691.61 1,239.37       659.00        493.97          36,310.54     1,209.36      27,610.46     

153,242.23   5,122.06      100,658.26   407,981.63   13,467.97   288,152.95   463,962.43   13,115.59    332,302.79   
Republic Share 47,461.91     106,360.71   118,544.05   

Comments:
Prior to the 2017/2018 fiscal year, minimum payments of $11,500 were received monthly, with an annual reconciliation and bulk payment.
70% of receipts up to $225,000
80% of receipts over $225,000 Gross CC Net

2019 472,473.50   13,315.61   338,793.56   
2020 160,684.96   6,827.12     114,519.84   

2020/2021 2019/2020 2018/2019

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Parking Revenue Historical Data



 
Memo 
To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Stacie de Mestre 

Date:  December 9, 2021 

Re: SoCo Crossing Architectural Plans 

 
Per the Second Addendum to Purchase and Sale Agreement with 
S.P.O.R.T Wenatchee, LLC the Purchaser was to provide the Seller 
with a copy of the architectural plans no later than December 6, 2021 
for review and comment to ensure consistency with Exhibit “B” of the 
Purchase and Sale Agreement.  Please see attached for the pertinent 
pages of the architectural plans received by Staff on December 1, 
2021.   



FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.
Wenatchee, Washington

PLUMB PERFECT
Wenatchee, Washington

BTL ENGINEERING, P.S.
Woodinville, Washington

SALCIDO CONNECTION, INC.
Wenatchee, Washington

SALCIDO CONNECTION, INC.
Wenatchee, Washington

NORTHWEST GEODIMENSIONS
Wenatchee, Washington

240 North Wenatchee Ave.
Wenatchee, WA 98801

(509) 293-5566    

www.fortearchitects.com  

ADDRESS:

PHONE:    

WEBSITE:    

Copyright 2019 FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.

JOB NO.

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECK BY

SPORT, LLC

SoCo. CROSSING
2021 12 01

A0.1

EF

2018

2021 12 01

LS

COVER SHEET

SP
O

R
T
, 

LL
C

2
5

 S
. 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

W
en

at
ch

ee
, 

W
A

 9
8

8
0

1

S
o
C

o
. 

C
R

O
S
S
IN

G

ARCHITECTS:

STRUCTURAL CONSULTANT:

PLUMBING CONSULTANT:

MECHANICAL CONSULTANT:

ELECTRICAL CONSULTANT:

CIVIL CONSULTANT: PACIFIC ENGINEERING
Wenatchee, Washington

TELECOMS/SECURITY 
CONSULTANT:

SURVEY CONSULTANT:

ARCHITECTURAL DRAWING

D0-ALL DEMO PLAN - OVERALL

D1.1 DEMO PLAN - AREA "A" - GROUND LEVEL

D1.2 DEMO PLAN- AREA "A" 2ND & 3RD FLOOR

D2.1 DEMO PLAN - AREA "B" GROUND FLOOR

D2.2 DEMO PLAN- AREA "B"- SECOND FLOOR

D3-C DEMO PLAN - AREA "C"- GROUND LEVEL

D3.1 DEMO PLAN- AREA "C"- MEZZANINE LEVEL

D4.1 OVERALL RCP DEMOLITION

GENERAL DRAWING

A0.1 COVER SHEET

A0.2 GENERAL NOTES

A0.3 PARTITIONS/WALLS/CEILINGS

A0.4 LIFE SAFETY PLAN - FIRST LEVEL

A0.5 LIFE SAFETY PLAN - SECOND LEVEL

A0.6 LIFE SAFETY PLAN - THIRD LEVEL

A0.7 LIFE SAFETY PLAN - ROOFTOP LEVEL

A0.8 ADA REQUIREMENTS, MILLWORK & SIGNAGE DETAILS

STRUCTURAL DRAWING

S2.1A FOUNDATION PLAN

S2.1B FOUNDATION PLAN

S2.1C FOUNDATION PLAN

S2.2A SECOND FLOOR FRAMING PLAN

S2.2B SECOND FLOOR FRAMING PLAN

S2.2C SECOND FLOOR FRAMING PLAN

S2.3A 3RD FLOOR FRAMING PLAN

S2.3C 3RD FLOOR FRAMING PLAN

S2.4A ROOF FRAMING PLAN

S2.4B ROOF FRAMING PLAN

S2.4C ROOF FRAMING PLAN

S2.5A PENTHOUSE ROOF FRAMING PLAN

S2.5B PENTHOUSE ROOF FRAMING PLAN

S2.5C PENTHOUSE ROOF FRAMING PLAN

S100 GENERAL STRUCTRUAL NOTES

S101 GENERAL STRUCTURAL NOTES

S800 FOUNDATION DETAILS

S801 FRAMING DETAILS

S802 FRAMING DETAILS

S803 FRAMING DETAILS

S804 METAL FRAMING DETAILS

S900 LATERAL DETAILS

SURVEY DRAWING

SURVEY SURVEY

A1.1 SITE PLAN

A1.2 SITE DETAILS

A1.3 SITE DETAILS

A1.4 LANDSCAPE PLAN

A1.5 IRRIGATION PLAN

A2.1 GROUND LEVEL FLOOR PLAN - OVERALL

A2.2 2ND LEVEL FLOOR PLAN - OVERALL

A2.3 3RD LEVEL FLOOR PLAN - OVERALL

A2.4 ROOFTOP LEVEL FLOOR PLAN - OVERALL

A2.5 ROOF PLAN - OVERALL

A3.1 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - OVERALL

A3.2 DETAILED EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - AREA "A" - NORTH & EAST

A3.3 DETAILED EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - AREA "A" - SOUTH & WEST

A3.4 DETAILED EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - AREA "B" - SOUTH, EAST & NORTH

A3.5 DETAILED EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - AREA "C" - SOUTH & WEST

A3.6 DETAILED EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - AREA "C" - NORTH & EAST

A3.7 BUILDING SECTIONS - AREA "A" - SECTION A, B & C

A3.8 BUILDING SECTIONS - AREA "B" - SECTIONS D, E, F & G

A3.9 BUILDING SECTIONS - AREA "C" - SECTIONS G,H & I

A3.10 WALL ELEVATIONS

A3.11 WALL SECTIONS & DETAILS

A3.12 WALL SECTIONS & DETAILS

A4.1-A DETAILED GROUND LEVEL - AREA "A"

A4.2-B DETAILED GROUND LEVEL - AREA "B"

A4.3-C DETAILED GROUND LEVEL - AREA "C"

A4.4-A DETAILED 2ND LEVEL - AREA "A"

A4.5-B DETAILED 2ND LEVEL - AREA "B"

A4.6-C DETAILED MEZZANINE LEVEL - AREA "C"

A4.7-A DETAILED 3RD LEVEL - AREA "A"

A4.8-C DETAILED 3RD LEVEL - AREA "C"

A4.9-C DETAILED ROOFTOP LEVEL - AREA "C"

A4.9.1-C FURNITURE DETAIL ROOFTOP LEVEL - AREA "C"

A5.1 CALLOUTS & INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - AREA A

A5.2 CALLOUTS & INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - AREA B

A5.3 CALLOUTS & INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - AREA B

A5.4 CALLOUTS & INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - AREA B

A5.5 CALLOUTS & INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - AREA B

A5.6 CALLOUTS & INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - AREA B

A5.7 CALLOUTS & INTERIOR ELEVATIONS-AREA B

A6.1-A DETAILED RCP - GROUND LEVEL - AREA "A"

A6.2-B DETAILED RCP - GROUND LEVEL - AREA "B"

A6.3-C DETAILED RCP - GROUND LEVEL - AREA "C"

A6.4-A DETAILED RCP - 2ND & 3RD LEVEL - AREA "A"

Revisions

Date No Description

INLAND FIRE
Wenatchee, Washington

SPRINKLER
CONSULTANT:

A6.5-B DETAILED RCP - 2ND LEVEL - AREA "B"

A6.6-C DETAILED RCP - MEZZANINE - AREA "C"

A6.7-C DETAILED RCP - ROOFTOP LEVEL - AREA "C"

A7.1 VERTICAL CIRCULATION

A7.2 VERTICAL CIRCULATION

A7.3 VERTICAL CIRCULATION

A7.4 VERTICAL CIRCULATION

A7.5 VERTICAL CIRCULATION

A7.6 VERTICAL CIRCULATION

A8.0 OCCUPANCY CALCS

A8.1 DETAILS - BATHROOMS - AREA "A"

A8.2 DETAILS - BATHROOMS - AREA "A"

A8.3 DETAILS - BATHROOMS - AREA "B"

A8.4 DETAILS - BATHROOMS - AREA "C"

A8.5 DETAILS - BATHROOMS - AREA "C"

A8.11 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS

A8.12 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS

A8.14 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - FLOORS

A8.15 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - RAILINGS

A8.18 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - ELEVATOR DETAILS

A8.19 CASEWORK DETAILS TYPICAL

A9.1 DOOR ELEVATION SCHEDULE

A9.2 DOOR SCHEDULE

A9.3 WINDOW SCHEDULE

A9.4 ROOM & FINISH SCHEDULE

S2.1A FOUNDATION PLAN

SALCIDO CONNECTION, INC.
Wenatchee, Washington



OHE

W

NG

S

SD

T

X

PROPOSED PROJECT SITE COVERAGE:

Occupancy Group(s):
Construction Type(s):

Sprinkler System:

Basic Allowable Area:

- Increases for Frontage:
(per IBC 2018 506.2.3, 

Single Occupancy,
Multistory Buildings) 

Proposed GROUND LEVEL:
Proposed New 2ND LEVEL:

Proposed New MEZZANINE LEVEL:
Proposed New 3RD LEVEL:

Proposed New ROOFTOP LEVEL:
TOTAL PROPOSED SF

Building Max Height:

A-4
IIIB
Yes, an Automatic Sprinkler System to be installed 
throughout per Chelan County Fire Marshall
28,500 SF

Aa = [At + (NS x If)] x Sa
Aa = [28,500 + (9,500 x .75)] x 3
Aa = [28,500 + 7,125] x 3
Aa = 35,625 x 3
Aa = 106,875 SF (Increased Frontage)

38,425 SF
14,121 SF
2,566   SF
4,164   SF
16,040 SF
75,316 SF

48'-6"

Building Site Footprint:

Building Site Coverage:
Impervious Surface Coverage(IS):

IS Coverage:

Conditioned Floor Space: 

Ground (1st) Level = 38,425 SF
SEE ADJACENT BREAKDOWN FOR AREA SF DETAILS

38,425sf / 63,162sf = 0.608 x 100 = 60.8%
60,000 SF (Building Footprint+Parking+ACCESS +

Outdoor Amenities)
60,000sf / 63,162sf = 94.99 x 100 = 95%

61,421SF (See adjacent for Level by Level breakdown)

BUILDING DATA:

PARKING:

DESIGN CRITERIA:

Reference Code(s)

Design Roof Snow Load:         
Wind Design Data:

Wind Exposure:
Seismic Design Category:

Freeze Depth:

IBC 2018, WSEC 2018 , IFC 2018
City of Wenatchee Municipal Code
40 PSF
85 MPH
"C" Typical
D
18"

See A1.1 For Plan & Details Per City of Wenatchee Code
CBD - 10.24.050 (2) Off-Street Parking: Off-street parking shall be exempt for all buildings in 
existence on or before January 15, 2018.New construction shall be subject to the following criteria:
(a) One off-street parking space for each guest room, suite, or dwelling unit for hotels, motels, and 
other residential units. All other uses exempt.
(b) Demonstration of off-street loading space for trucks and delivery vehicles shall be provided.
(c) One hundred percent of the required parking may be provided through either:

(i) A shared parking agreement as provided for in WCC 10.60.040; provided the distance 
required of WCC 10.60.040(4) shall be expanded up to a one-half mile radius; or
(ii) An overnight parking permit acceptable to the city.

CSO - Parking shall be subject to the 
same standards as the underlying central 
business district criteria of WCC 
10.24.050(2)

SQUARE FOOTAGE BREAKDOWN BY AREA:
GROUND LEVEL:

"A" 14,238 SF
                      +  "B"   7,438 SF

"C" 16,749 SF
         38,425 SF

LEVEL 2:
"A"   8,907 SF

                +  "B"  5,214 SF
          14,121 SF

MEZZENINE 
LEVEL AREA "C":        2,566 SF

LEVEL 3:
"A"  4,162 SF

ROOFTOP:
"C" 16,040 SF

Proposed GROUND LEVEL:
Proposed New 2ND LEVEL:
Proposed New 3RD LEVEL:

Proposed New ROOFTOP LEVEL:

TOTAL CONDITIONED SF

37,687 SF
16,687 SF
4,164 SF
2,883 SF

61,421 SF

ENERGY DATA:

Climate Zone:

Energy Code Analysis Method
Space Heat Type

Roof
Opaque Walls

Below Grade (Fnd'tn.) Walls
Floor Over Uncond. Space

SHGC
Doors

Windows
Slab on Grade

Glazing (0-20%)

5B

Prescriptive
Electric

R-49
R-21, INT.
R-10 for 24" Below
R-38
See Envelope Form
U-0.37
U-0.25
R-10 for 24" Below
9.4%

WSEC ENERGY CREDIT REQUIREMENTS:

PER WSEC 2018 WORKSHEETS

ADDITIONAL MECHANICAL REQUIREMENTS ADDITIONAL PLUMBING REQUIREMENTS

SEE PLUMBING PLAN SHEETS FOR 
ADDITONAL PLUMBING INFORMATION 

SEE MECHANICAL PLAN SHEETS FOR ADDITONAL 
MECHAINCAL SYSTEMS INFORMATION 

CONDITIONED FLOOR SPACE PROJECT CLOSE OUT

PROJECT CLOSE OUT DOCUMENTATION IS 
REQUIRED INCLUDING APPLICABLE 
CALCULATIONS, WSEC ENVELOPE COMPLIANCE 
REPORTS, AND FENESTRATION NFRC RATING 
CERTIFICATES 

AB ANCHOR BOLT
ADJ ADJACENT
AFF ABOVE FINISH FLOOR
AL ALUMINUM
ALT ALTERNATE
APPROX APPROXIMATE
ARCH ARCHITECTURAL
@ AT

BLDG BUILDING
BLKG BLOCKING
BOT BOTTOM

CIP CAST IN PLACE
CLG CEILING
CLR CLEAR
CMU CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT
COL COLUMN
CONC CONCRETE
CONT CONTINUOUS

DIA DIAMETER
DIM DIMENSION
DIR DIRECTION
DN DOWN
DS DOWN SPOUT
DWG DRAWING

(E) EXISTING
EA EACH
EL ELEVATION
ELEC ELECTRICAL
EXT EXTERIOR
EQ EQUAL
EQUIP EQUIPMENT

FA FIRE ALARM
FIN FINISH
FE FIRE EXTINGUISHER
FD FLOOR DRAIN
FF FINISH FLOOR
FLR FLOOR
FND FOUNDATION
FT FOOT/FEET
FTG FOOTING

GA GAUGE
GALV GALVANIZED
GB GRAB BAR
GC GENERAL CONTRACTOR
GWB GYPSUM WALL BOARD

HB HOSE BIB
HDR HEADER
HDW HARDWARE
HDWD HARDWOOD
HGT HEIGHT
HORIZ HORIZONTAL

INSUL INSULATION
INT INTERIOR

JT JOINT

LAM LAMINATE
LAV LAVATORY
LT LIGHT

MAS MASONRY OPENING
MATL MATERIAL
MAX MAXIMUM
MECH MECHANICAL
MFR MANUFACTURER
MIN MINIMUM
MISC MISCELLANEOUS
MO MASONRY OPENING
MTL METAL

(N) NEW
NIC NOT IN CONTRACT
NOM NOMINAL
NTS NOT TO SCALE

O/ OVER
OC ON CENTER
OFCI OWNER FURNISH, 

CONTRACTOR INSTALL
OFOI OWNER FURNISH, 

OWNER INSTALL
OPNG OPENING
OPP OPPOSITE

(P) PROPOSED
PB PARTICLE BOARD
PC PRECAST
PIP POURED IN PLACE
PL PLATE
PLAM PLASTIC LAMINATE
PLYWD PLYWOOD
PNT PAINT
PTD PAINTED

RD ROOF DRAIN
REF REFERENCE
REFR REFRIGERATOR
REINF REINFORCED
REQ'D REQUIRED
RM ROOM
RO ROUGH OPENING

SHT SHEET
SIM SIMILAR
SOG SLAB ON GRADE
SPEC SPECIFICATION
SQ SQUARE
STD STANDARD
STL STEEL
STN STAIN
STOR STORAGE
STRCT STRUCTURAL
SUSP SUSPENDED
SYM SYMMETRICAL
SS STAINLESS STEEL

T TREAD
TEL TELEPHONE
T&G TONGUE & GROOVE
TI TENANT IMPROVEMENT
TO TOP OF...
TOP TOP OF PLATE
TOR TOP OF ROOF
TOS TOP OF SLAB
TYP TYPICAL

UON UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

VB VAPOR BARRIER
VCT VINYL COMPOSITE TILE
VERT VERTICAL
VIF VERIFY IN FIELD
VWC VINYL WALL COVERING

W/ WITH
WC WATER CLOSET
WD WOOD
WH WATER HEATER
WIN WINDOW
W/O WITHOUT
WP WATERPROOF

4

3

A5.1

1
A3.3

1
A3.2

10

P1

X

A3.11

1

1
A3.2

DRAWING TITLE
NUMERIC SCALE

DETAIL/ CALLOUT KEY

WINDOW NUMBER KEY

DOOR NUMBER

GRID LINE

EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEY

BUILDING SECTION KEY

WALL SECTION KEY
(With Sheet Number)

INTERIOR ELEVATION KEY
(Elevation Number w/ Sheet Number)

KEY NOTE

PARTITION (P1) & WALL (W1)

CABINET KEY

X

101

B

LEVEL
ELEV. HEIGHT

FINISH FLOOR
or Building Level Line

1/2" TAIL

TRUE 
NORTH

PROJECT 
NORTH

(With Sheet Number)

(With Sheet Number)
1

A3.2

NATURAL GAS

WATER

SANITARY SEWER

STORM DRAIN

OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL

UNDERGROUND COMM.

FENCE

UTILITY LINES:

FINISH POINT ELEVATION

EXISTING POINT ELEVATION

PROPERTY LINE/CORNERS

(To Remain)

CENTER LINE

12.50

12.50

OWNER/DEVELOPER

ARCHITECT

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC., Ellyn Freed & Lenka Slapnicka 
Wenatchee, WA 98801
PHONE: 509-293-5566  EMAIL: ellyn@fortearchitects.com

CIVIL ENGINEER

MECHANICAL ENGINEER

SURVEYOR

ELECTRICAL ENGINEER

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

GENERAL CONTRACTOR

OWNER'S REP/
PROJECT MANAGER

GC's PROJECT MANAGER

BTL ENGINEERING PS, Eric Dann
Woodinville, WA 98072
PHONE: 425-814-8448   EMAIL: eric.dann@btleng.net

NORTHWEST GEODIMENSIONS, Norman Nelson
Wenatchee, WA 98801
PHONE: 509-663-8660  EMAIL: nwg@nwgsurveys.com

EIDER CONSTRUCTION, Flint Hartwig
Wenatchee, WA 98801
PHONE: 509-885-3396  EMAIL: flint.hartwig@eiderbuilding.com

N/A

PACIFIC ENGINEERING, PE, Heather Ostenson
Wenatchee, WA 98801
PHONE: 509-662-1161   EMAIL: heather@pacificengineering.net

SPORT, LLC
Wenatchee, WA 98801
PHONE: 509-264-8204  EMAIL: hartwigco@gmail.com

SALCIDO CONNECTION, Rob Fritz
Wenatchee, WA 98801
PHONE: 509-884-6868 EMAIL: robf@salcidoconnection.com

SALCIDO CONNECTION, Rob Fritz
Wenatchee, WA 98801
PHONE: 509-884-6868 EMAIL: robf@salcidoconnection.com

FLINT HARTWIG
Wenatchee, WA 98801
PHONE: 509-264-8204  EMAIL: hartwigco@gmail.com

SoCo CROSSING IS AN ADAPTIVE REUSE PROJECT, THAT WILL RECONFIGURE A PREVIOUSLY OCCUPIED FRUIT STORAGE 
WAREHOUSE INTO A MASSIVE, MIXED USED EVENT SPACE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC. THE SPACE WILL BE PROGRAMMATICALLY 
SECTIONED INTO 3 SEPARATE AREAS, "A", "B" AND "C" IN THE PLAN SET, THOUGH THE ENTIRE BUILDING WILL FUNCTION AS 
AN A-4 OCCUPANCY CATEGORY.  THE SPACE WILL HAVE MULTIPLE EATERY AREAS, A GYMNASTICS CENTER, BATTING CAGES, 
GOLF SIMULATORS AND A FITNESS/PLAY CENTER AS WELL AS A ROOFTOP LOUNGE AND GAMES AREA.

EIDER CONSTRUCTION, Andy Miller
Wenatchee, WA 98801
PHONE: 509-885-3396  EMAIL: andy.miller@eiderbuilding.com

ZONING JURISDICTION: 

TAX PARCEL:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

CITY OF WENATCHEE

222003925060 (WEST LOT) & 222003440200 (EAST LOT)

WAREHOUSE BLOCK 3 LOT 3 S 60' OF LOT 1 & LOTS 2-5 0.4800 ACRES (WEST LOT)
T 22N R 20EWM S 03 LOT B BLA 1998-011 0.9700 ACRES (EAST LOT)

ZONE

SITE AREA

CBD - CENTRAL BUS. DIST.
CSO - COLUMBIA ST. OVLY.

MAX ALLOWABLE 
COVERAGE

MAX ALLOWABLE 
HEIGHT

100%

90'-0"

SETBACKS

PER CODE SECTION(S): CBD 10.46.040/080 & CSO - 10.40.020: Development 
standards for projects within the Columbia Street overlay are required to meet 
the underlying CBD zone, with the exceptions described below:
(2) Maximum Setback. Zero.

STREET - MIN:

FRONT STREET - MAX:

MIN SIDEWALK WIDTH:

REAR SETBACK:

SIDE SETBACK:

0' - 10'

NONE

12'-0"

0'-0"

0'-0"
0.48 ACRES / 20908.80 SF +
0.97 ACRES / 42253.20 SF

PROJECT LOCATION

TRUE 
NORTH

VICINITY MAPABBREVIATIONS

ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO ALL APPLICABLE CODES AND ORDINANCES 
INCLUDING 2015 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE (2015 IBC), 2015 IFC, 2015 
IMC, 2015 UPC, 2017 NEC, 2015 WSEC, 2015 IRC AND ANY ADDITIONAL LOCAL 
BUILDING CODES AND CODE AMENDMENTS; THE MORE STRINGENT IS TO 
GOVERN;  DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND CODES SHALL 
BE BROUGHT TO THE  ARCHITECT'S ATTENTION PROMPLTY AND A RESOULTION 
OBTAINED BEFORE PROCEEDING.

DRAWINGS ARE NOT TO BE SCALED.   DIMENSIONAL DATA SHALL BE OBTAINED 
FROM WRITTEN INFORMATION ONLY.  VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS BEFORE 
PROCEEDING.  ANY DIMENSIONAL DEVIATION FROM THAT SHOWN ON THE 
DRAWINGS, WHICH MAY AFFECT THE INTENT OF THE DESIGN OR PROPER 
INCORPORATION OF ELEMENTS, SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ARCHITECT'S 
ATTENTION PROMPTLY AND A RESOLUTION OBTAINED BEFORE PROCEEDING.

THE ARCHITECT SHALL BE INFORMED IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCY 
BETWEEN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND THE SITE CONDITIONS.

THE TERM "FINISHED FLOOR" (FIN. FLR. OR F.F) REFERS TO THE TOP OF FINISHED 
SLAB WHERE CONCRETE FLOORS OCCUR.

EXTERIOR DIMENSIONS ARE TO THE FACE OF CONCRETE / MASONRY / SHEATHING 
OR REFERENCED FROM GRIDLINES UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. INTERIOR 
DIMENSIONS ARE TO THE FACE OF FRAMING OR FACE OF MASONRY, UNLESS 
INDICATED AS A CENTERLINE OR SPECIFICALLY NOTED OTHERWISE.  CLEAR 
DIMENSIONS SHALL BE FROM FINISH TO FINISH.

NTS

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

240 North Wenatchee Ave.
Wenatchee, WA 98801

(509) 293-5566    

www.fortearchitects.com  

ADDRESS:

PHONE:    

WEBSITE:    

Copyright 2020 FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.

JOB NO.

PROJECT NARRATIVE

GENERAL NOTES

NOTATIONS OR DETAILS KEYED TO VARIOUS DRAWING SYMBOLS, 
PATTERNS, ETC. SHALL APPLY TYPICALLY TO ALL SIMILARLY INDICATED 
ITEMS, LOCTIONS, OR CONDITIONS NOT OTHERWISE KEYED.

PRESERVE AND PROTECT EXISTING UTILITIES AND BUILDING COMPONENTS 
WHICH MAY BE PRESENT AND ARE NOT SCHEDULED OR REQUIRED TO BE 
CHANGED OR REMOVED.

ADJUST NEW CONSTRUCTION TO ALIGN WITH EXISTING CONSTRUCTION 
SUCH THAT FINISHES MAY BE APPLIED ALONG STRAIGHT AND TRUE LINES, 
UNLESS SPECIFICALLY NOTED OTHERWISE.

ALL REFERENCES TO NORTH, SOUTH, EAST, AND WEST SHALL BE BASED 
UPON "PROJECT NORTH" AS SHOWN IN THE DRAWINGS.

TYPICAL WALL CORNERS ARE 90 DEGREES, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED IN 
DRAWING SET.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

PROJECT TEAM

ARCHITECTURAL SYMBOLS

ZONING

ENERGY

SITE BUILDING

A0.2

2018

GENERAL NOTES

25 S. Columbia Street
Wenatchee, WA 98801

So
C

o
. 
C

R
O

SS
IN

G
SP

O
R

T
, 
LL

C

2
5

 S
. 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

W
en

at
ch

ee
, 

W
A

 9
8

8
0

1

Revisions

Date No. Descrption



UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

R
a
n
g
e

OVERALL PLAN NOTES:

1. SEE DETAILED PLAN SHEETS A4.1-A THROUGH A4.9-C FOR DETAILED DIMENSIONS,
SPECIFIC AREA NOTES AND AREA LAYOUT INFORMATION FOR EACH ACTIVITY.

2. REFER TO A4.1-A4.9 FOR WALL TYPES

A1

A1

A10

A10

AC

AA

AB

A2

A2

A3

A3

A4

A4

A5

A5

A6

A6

A7

A7

A8

A8

A9

A9

C1

C1

C5

C5

C2

C2

C3

C3

C4

C4

CA

CG

CB

CC

CD

CE

CF

2

A3.8

2

A3.8

B2

B2

B1

B1

BA BA

BB BB

2

A3.7

2

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.8

3

A3.8

2

A3.9

2

A3.9

1

A3.9

3

A3.9

3

A3.9

1

A3.7

1

A3.8

1

A3.8

1
A7.6

5
A7.4

3
A7.1

2
A7.2

LINE OF 
LEVEL 
ABOVE

LINE OF 
LEVEL 
ABOVE

LINE OF 
LEVEL 
ABOVE

LINE OF 
LEVEL 
ABOVE

2
0

'-
0

"
2
9
'-
4
"

3
5
'-
4
"

14
'-
0

"

4
9
'-
4
"

16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 18'-0" 35'-8" 38'-4" 45'-9 1/2" 41'-5" 45'-6 1/2"

16
'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"

16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 18'-0" 16'-0" 15'-1 1/2" 14'-3" 14'-9" 15'-6" 14'-4 1/2"

A103

A
1

0
4

A105

A106

A107

A108

A109

A110

A111

A112

A113

A114

A115

A116

B101

B102

B103

B104

B105

B106

B108
B109

C101

C102

C103

C104

C105

C106
STR1

STR2

STR3

STR4

E1

E2

18'-0"

4
9
'-
4
"

9
8
'-
8
"

45'-9 1/2"

17
'-
4
"

17
'-
4
"

18'-0" 16'-0"

148'-0" 90'-0" 178'-6 1/2"

148'-0" 90'-0" 178'-6 1/2"

9
8
'-
8
"

416'-6 1/2"

416'-6 1/2"

1

A3.11

2

A3.11

3

A3.11

1'-0" 1'-0"

1'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

1'-0"

1'
-0

"

10'-0"

FEAT STR

4

A3.8

10'-0"

10
'-
0

"
10

'-
0

"

10'-0"22'-9 1/2" 12'-10 1/2"

35'-8" 38'-4" 45'-9 1/2" 41'-5" 45'-6 1/2" 45'-9 1/2"

10'-0"

54'-0"

A117

1'
-0

"

1'-0"

MAX OCC: 146

MAX OCC: 83
FOR BATTING CAGES

& SIMULATORS

MAX OCC: 60

WH

A
1

0
2

B107

B110

-

---

-

---

-

---

-

---

C

BUILDING "AREA" LEGEND

A B

Copyright 2021 FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.

240 North Wenatche Ave.
Wenatchee, WA 98801

(509) 293-5566    

www.fortearchitects.com  

JOB NO.

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECK BY

DWG ID

ADDRESS:

PHONE:    

WEBSITE:    

A2.1

EF, KV

2018

2021 12 01

LS

GROUND LEVEL FLOOR PLAN -
OVERALL

S
o

C
o
. 

C
R

O
S
S
IN

G
SP

O
R

T
, 
LL

C

2
5

 S
. 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

W
en

at
ch

ee
, 

W
A

 9
8

8
0

1

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"
1

GROUND LEVEL FLOOR PLAN - OVERALL

PROJECT 
NORTH

TRUE 
NORTH

Revisions

Date No. Description



DN

UP

DN

DN

DN

UP

DN

UP

UP

A1

A1

A10

A10

AC AC

AA AA

AB AB

A2

A2

A3

A3

A4

A4

A5

A5

A6

A6

A7

A7

A8

A8

A9

A9

C1

C1

C5

C5

C2

C2

C3

C3

C4

C4

CA

CG

CB CB

CC CC

CD CD

CE CE

CF CF

2

A3.8

2

A3.8

B2

B2

B1

B1

BA BA

BB

BB

2

A3.7

2

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.8

3

A3.8

2

A3.9

2

A3.9

1

A3.9

3

A3.9

3

A3.9

1

A3.7

1

A3.8

1

A3.8

OPEN TO
BELOW

OPEN TO
BELOW

O
P

EN
 T

O
B

EL
O

W

OPEN TO
BELOW

OPEN TO
BELOW

1
A7.6

5
A7.4

3
A7.1

2
A7.2

9
8
'-
8
"

9
8
'-
8
"

4
9
'-
4
"

4
9
'-
4
"

18'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 18'-0" 16'-0" 35'-8" 55'-6 1/2"

17
'-
4
"

16
'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
17

'-
4
"

18'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 18'-0" 16'-0" 15'-1 1/2" 14'-3" 14'-9" 15'-6"

A201

STR1

A205

A206
A207 A208

A209

A210
B201

B202 B203 B204

B205

B206

B207

B208

B209

C201

148'-0" 90'-0" 178'-6 1/2"

178'-6 1/2"148'-0" 90'-0"

416'-6 1/2"

416'-6 1/2"

14
'-
0

"
2
0

'-
0

"

2
0

'-
0

"

14
'-
0

"

1

A3.11

2

A3.11

3

A3.11

51'-6 3/4"

FEAT STR

STR2

STR3

STR4

38'-2 1/4" 46'-0 1/2" 41'-5" 45'-6 1/2" 45'-9 1/2"

1'-0"

4

A3.8

1'-0"

14'-4 1/2" 45'-9 1/2" 41'-5" 45'-6 1/2" 45'-9 1/2"

1'-0"1'-0"

1'
-0

"
1'
-0

"

1'
-0

"
1'
-0

"

4
8
'-
4
" MAX OCC:49

FITNESS AREA 1

MAX OCC:82
KIDS' ZONE

MAX OCC:48
MEZZANINE

MAX OCC:39 MAX OCC:40

MAX OCC:46

MAX OCC:39

EVENT ROOMS

B210

-

---

-

---

-

---

-

---

OVERALL PLAN NOTES:

1. SEE DETAILED PLAN SHEETS A4.1-A THROUGH A4.9-C FOR DETAILED DIMENSIONS,
SPECIFIC AREA NOTES AND AREA LAYOUT INFORMATION FOR EACH ACTIVITY.

2. REFER TO A4.1-A4.9 FOR WALL TYPES

C

BUILDING "AREA" LEGEND

A B

Copyright 2021 FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.

240 North Wenatche Ave.
Wenatchee, WA 98801

(509) 293-5566    

www.fortearchitects.com  

JOB NO.

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECK BY

DWG ID

ADDRESS:

PHONE:    

WEBSITE:    

A2.2

EF, KV

2018

2021 12 01

LS

2ND LEVEL FLOOR PLAN -
OVERALL

S
o

C
o
. 

C
R

O
S
S
IN

G
SP

O
R

T
, 
LL

C

2
5

 S
. 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

W
en

at
ch

ee
, 

W
A

 9
8

8
0

1

PROJECT 
NORTH

TRUE 
NORTH

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"
1

2ND LEVEL AREA A & B FLOOR PLAN - OVERALL

Revisions

Date No. Description



DN

DN
DN

UP

DN

UP

UPUP

UP

OVERALL PLAN NOTES:

1. SEE DETAILED PLAN SHEETS A4.1-A THROUGH A4.9-C FOR DETAILED DIMENSIONS,
SPECIFIC AREA NOTES AND AREA LAYOUT INFORMATION FOR EACH ACTIVITY.

2. REFER TO A4.1-A4.9 FOR WALL TYPES

A1

A1

A10

A10

AC AC

AA AA

AB

AB

A2

A2

A3

A3

A4

A4

A5

A5

A6

A6

A7

A7

A8

A8

A9

A9

C1

C1

C5

C5

C2

C2

C3

C3

C4

C4

CA
CA

CG CG

CB CB

CC CC

CD

CD

CE CE

CF CF

2

A3.8

2

A3.8

B2

B2

B1

B1

BA BA

BB BB

2

A3.7

2

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.8

3

A3.8

2

A3.9

2

A3.9

1

A3.9

3

A3.9

3

A3.9

1

A3.7

1

A3.8

1

A3.8

1
A7.6

5
A7.4

3
A7.1

2
A7.2

2
0

'-
0

"
6
4
'-
8
"

14
'-
0

"

4
9
'-
4
"

4
9
'-
4
"

9
8
'-
8
"

16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 18'-0" 16'-0" 35'-8" 41'-5" 45'-6 1/2"

148'-0" 90'-0" 178'-6 1/2"

9
8
'-
8
"

17
'-
4
"

16
'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
17

'-
4
"

18'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 18'-0" 16'-0" 15'-1 1/2" 14'-3" 14'-9" 15'-6"

ACCESSED ON 
SECOND FLOOR

ACCESSED ON 
GROUND FLOOR

ACCESSED ON 
SECOND FLOOR

A301

A302
A303

A304A305

A306

A307

A308

18'-0"

148'-0"

38'-4" 45'-9 1/2" 45'-9 1/2"

90'-0" 178'-6 1/2"

38'-4" 45'-9 1/2" 45'-9 1/2"

416'-6 1/2"

416'-6 1/2"

1

A3.11

2

A3.11

3

A3.11

STR1

STR3

STR4

STR2

OPEN TO 
BELOW

4

A3.8

41'-5" 45'-6 1/2"

1'-0"

1'
-0

"

1'-0"

1'
-0

"
1'
-0

"

1'-0"

14'-4 1/2"

E1

1'-0"

1'
-0

"

MAX OCC:44
FITNESS AREA 2

MAX OCC:4
OFFICE AREA

-

---

-

---

-

---

-

---

C

BUILDING "AREA" LEGEND

A B

Copyright 2021 FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.

240 North Wenatche Ave.
Wenatchee, WA 98801

(509) 293-5566    

www.fortearchitects.com  

JOB NO.

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECK BY

DWG ID

ADDRESS:

PHONE:    

WEBSITE:    

A2.3

EF, KV

2018

2021 12 01

LS

3RD LEVEL FLOOR PLAN -
OVERALL

S
o

C
o
. 

C
R

O
S
S
IN

G
SP

O
R

T
, 
LL

C

2
5

 S
. 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

W
en

at
ch

ee
, 

W
A

 9
8

8
0

1

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"
1

3RD LEVEL FLOOR PLAN - OVERALL

PROJECT 
NORTH

TRUE 
NORTH

Revisions

Date No. Description



DN

DN

DN

C

BUILDING "AREA" LEGEND

A B

A1

A1

A10

A10

AC AC

AA AA

AB AB

A2

A2

A3

A3

A4

A4

A5

A5

A6

A6

A7

A7

A8

A8

A9

A9

C1

C1

C5

C5

C2

C2

C3

C3

C4

C4

CA CA

CG CG

CB CB

CC CC

CD CD

CE CE

CF CF

2

A3.8

2

A3.8

B2

B2

B1

B1

BA BA

BB BB

2

A3.7

2

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.8

3

A3.8

2

A3.9

2

A3.9

1

A3.9

3

A3.9

3

A3.9

1

A3.7

1

A3.8

1

A3.8

1
A7.6

5
A7.4

3
A7.1

2
A7.2

2
0

'-
0

"
6
4
'-
8
"

14
'-
0

"

4
9
'-
4
"

16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 18'-0" 16'-0" 35'-8" 38'-4" 45'-9 1/2" 41'-5" 45'-6 1/2" 45'-9 1/2"

16
'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
17

'-
4
"

90'-0"

18'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 18'-0" 16'-0" 35'-8" 38'-4" 45'-9 1/2" 41'-5" 45'-6 1/2" 45'-9 1/2"

5
A7.2

C402

C405

C404

STR 3

STR 4

E2

STR 2

E1

4
9
'-
4
"

9
8
'-
8
"

148'-0"

18'-0"

148'-0" 90'-0" 178'-6 1/2"

416'-6 1/2"

17
'-
4
"

9
8
'-
8
"

178'-6 1/2"

1

A3.11

2

A3.11

3

A3.11

416'-6 1/2"

4

A3.8

1'-0"

1'
-0

"
1'
-0

"

1'-0"1'-0"

1'
-0

"
1'
-0

"

1'-0"

2
0

'-
0

"

44'-0"

5
'-
0

"

27'-3"

1

A3.12

MAX OCC:292

MAX OCC:3

C403

-

---

-

---

-

---

-

---

OVERALL PLAN NOTES:

1. SEE DETAILED PLAN SHEETS A4.1-A THROUGH A4.9-C FOR DETAILED DIMENSIONS,
SPECIFIC AREA NOTES AND AREA LAYOUT INFORMATION FOR EACH ACTIVITY.

2. REFER TO A4.1-A4.9 FOR WALL TYPES Copyright 2021 FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.

240 North Wenatche Ave.
Wenatchee, WA 98801

(509) 293-5566    

www.fortearchitects.com  

JOB NO.

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECK BY

DWG ID

ADDRESS:

PHONE:    

WEBSITE:    

A2.4

EF, KV

2018

2021 12 01

LS

ROOFTOP LEVEL FLOOR PLAN -
OVERALL

S
o

C
o
. 

C
R

O
S
S
IN

G
SP

O
R

T
, 
LL

C

2
5

 S
. 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

W
en

at
ch

ee
, 

W
A

 9
8

8
0

1

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"
1

ROOFTOP LEVEL FLOOR PLAN - OVERALL

PROJECT 
NORTH

TRUE 
NORTH

Revisions

Date No. Description



A1

A1

A10

A10

AC AC

AA AA

AB AB

A2

A2

A3

A3

A4

A4

A5

A5

A6

A6

A7

A7

A8

A8

A9

A9

C1

C1

C5

C5

C2

C2

C3

C3

C4

C4

CA CA

CG CG

CB CB

CC CC

CD CD

CE CE

CF CF

2

A3.8

2

A3.8

B2

B2

B1

B1

BA BA

BB BB

2

A3.7

2

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.8

3

A3.8

2

A3.9

2

A3.9

1

A3.9

3

A3.9

3

A3.9

1

A3.7

1

A3.8

1

A3.8

1
A7.6

5
A7.4

3
A7.1

2
A7.2

3
" 

/ 
1
2

"
3

" 
/ 

1
2

"

2" / 12"

1" / 12"

1
/8

" 
/ 

1
2

"

1
/8

" 
/ 

1
2

"

3
/1

6
" 

/ 
1
2

"

3
/1

6
" 

/ 
1
2

"

4
9
'-
4
"

416'-6 1/2"

18'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 18'-0" 16'-0" 35'-8" 38'-4" 45'-9 1/2" 41'-5" 45'-6 1/2"

18'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 16'-0" 18'-0" 16'-0" 35'-8" 38'-4" 45'-9 1/2" 41'-5" 45'-6 1/2" 45'-9 1/2"

16
'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
16

'-
0

"
17

'-
4
"

7
'-
0

"

9'-0"

4
'-
0

"

13'-7"

T
Y
P

5
'-
6
"

TYP

5'-6"

T
Y
P

5
'-
6
"

18'-6" 26'-7 1/2"

6
'-
0

"

11'-9"

19
'-
2
"

10
'-
7
 1

/
2
"

1

A3.11

2

A3.11

3

A3.11

148'-0" 90'-0" 178'-6 1/2"

416'-6 1/2"

4
9
'-
4
"

9
8
'-
8
"

148'-0" 90'-0" 178'-6 1/2"

45'-9 1/2"

17
'-
4
"

9
8
'-
8
"

1" / 12"

1" / 12"

TYP

5'-6"
TYP

5'-6"

4

A3.8

1
/8

" 
/ 

1
2

"

1
/8

" 
/ 

1
2

"

1

A3.12

-

---

-

---

-

---

-

---

OVERALL ROOF PLAN NOTES:

1. SEE DETAILED PLAN SHEETS A4.1-A THROUGH A4.9-C FOR DETAILED DIMENSIONS,
SPECIFIC AREA NOTES AND AREA LAYOUT INFORMATION FOR EACH ACTIVITY.

2. PER 705.2.1, TYPE I & II CONST'N. "PROJECTS FROM WALLS OF TYPE I OR II 
CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE OF NONCOMBUSTIBLE MATERIALS AS ALLOWED 
BY SECTIONS 1406.3 & 1406.4."

3. PER 705.2.2, TYPE III, IV OR V CONST'N. "PROJECTIONS FROM WALLS OF TYPE III, IV 
OR V CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE OF ANY APPROVED MATERIAL.

C

BUILDING "AREA" LEGEND

A B

Copyright 2021 FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.

240 North Wenatche Ave.
Wenatchee, WA 98801

(509) 293-5566    

www.fortearchitects.com  

JOB NO.

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECK BY

DWG ID

ADDRESS:

PHONE:    

WEBSITE:    

A2.5

EF

2018

2021 12 01

LS

ROOF PLAN - OVERALL

S
o

C
o
. 

C
R

O
S
S
IN

G
SP

O
R

T
, 
LL

C

2
5

 S
. 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

W
en

at
ch

ee
, 

W
A

 9
8

8
0

1

PROJECT 
NORTH

TRUE 
NORTH

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"
1

ROOF PLAN

Revisions

Date No. Description



GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

ACAA AB

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

2ND LEVEL AREAS A & B
16'-0"

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

1

A3.7

1

A3.7

T.O.R.
48'-6"

TYPE-1 TYPE-2 TYPE-2 TYPE-1

AREA "A" - 1/A3.2

GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

CACG CBCCCDCECF

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

1

A3.9

1

A3.9

1
A7.6

1
A7.6

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

TYPE-1 TYPE-3 TYPE-3 TYPE-2

AREA "C" - 1/A3.6

MEZZANINE LEVEL AREA C
16'-0"

GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

A1A10 A2A3A4A5A6A7A8A9

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

C1C5 C2C3C4

2ND LEVEL AREAS A & B
16'-0"

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

2

A3.8

2

A3.8

B2 B1

2

A3.7

2

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.8

3

A3.8

2

A3.9

2

A3.9

3

A3.9

3

A3.9

3
A7.1

2
A7.2

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

1

A3.11

1

A3.11

2

A3.11

2

A3.11

3

A3.11

3

A3.11

TYPE-2 TYPE-2 TYPE-6 TYPE-6 TYPE-6 TYPE-6 TYPE-1 TYPE-1 TYPE-4 TYPE-4 TYPE-1 TYPE-1

AREA "C" - 2/A3.6 AREA "B" - 3/A3.4 AREA "A" - 2/A3.2

1

A3.12

MEZZANINE LEVEL AREA C
16'-0"

-

---

-

---

-

---

-

---

GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

A1 A10A2 A3 A4 A5 A6 A7 A8 A9

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

C1 C5C2 C3 C4

2ND LEVEL AREAS A & B
16'-0"

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

2

A3.8

2

A3.8

B2B1

2

A3.7

2

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.8

3

A3.8

2

A3.9

2

A3.9

3

A3.9

3

A3.9

3
A7.1

3
A7.1

2
A7.2

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

1

A3.11

1

A3.11

2

A3.11

2

A3.11

3

A3.11

3

A3.11

TYPE-2 TYPE-2 TYPE-6 TYPE-7 TYPE-6 TYPE-2 TYPE-2 TYPE-1 TYPE-1 TYPE-5 TYPE-1 TYPE-1

AREA "C" - 2/A3.5AREA "B" - 1/A3.4AREA "A" - 2/A3.2

1

A3.12

MEZZANINE LEVEL AREA C
16'-0"

10
'-
0

"

-

---

-

---

-

---

-

---

C

BUILDING "AREA" LEGEND

A B

ELEVATION NOTES:

1. SEE A3.10 FOR DETAILED PANEL CONFIGURATION DIMENSIONS AND STANDARDS

2. CONTRACTOR TO REFER TO MANUFACTURER INSTRUCTIONS FOR INSTALLATION AND
CARE GUIDES PRIOR TO BEGINNING SET UP AND INSTALL OF ALL SIDING, GLAZING
FLOORING, FINISHES, ETC.

3. METAL FLASHING AT TOP OF ROOF PARAPET FOR MAIN STRUSTURE TO BE 8" DEEP 
AND SHALL BE CHARCOAL BLACK IN COLOR WITH A MATTE FINISH.

4. METAL FLASHING AT TOP OF PARAPET TO STAIR TOWERS AND ELEVATOR TO MATCH 
THAT OF MAIN STRUCTURE IN COLOR AND SIZING AT 8" DEEP AND CHARCOAL BLACK.

Copyright 2021 FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.

240 North Wenatche Ave.
Wenatchee, WA 98801

(509) 293-5566    

www.fortearchitects.com  

JOB NO.

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECK BY

DWG ID

ADDRESS:

PHONE:    

WEBSITE:    

A3.1

EF

2018

2021 12 01

LS

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS -
OVERALL

S
o

C
o
. 

C
R

O
S
S
IN

G
SP

O
R

T
, 
LL

C

2
5

 S
. 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

W
en

at
ch

ee
, 

W
A

 9
8

8
0

1

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"
1

BUILDING ELEVATION - NORTH SIDE
SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

2
BUILDING ELEVATION - SOUTH SIDE

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"
3

BUILDING ELEVATION - EAST SIDE

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"
4

BUILDING ELEVATION - WEST SIDE

Revisions

Date No. Description



GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

ACAA AB

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

2ND LEVEL AREAS A & B
16'-0"

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

1

A3.7

1

A3.7

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

S
IL

L

8
'-
0

"

S
IL

L

8
'-
0

"

S
IL

L

4
'-
0

"

A A

C C

B B B B

CC

D D

C C C

A121 A122

GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

A1
A10

A2A3A4A5A6A7A8A9

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

2ND LEVEL AREAS A & B
16'-0"

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

2

A3.7

2

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.7

3
A7.1

3
A7.1

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

S
IL

L

8
'-
0

"

A A

A132

A

BUILDING "AREA" LEGEND

B C

ELEVATION NOTES:

1. SEE A3.10 FOR DETAILED PANEL CONFIGURATION DIMENSIONS AND STANDARDS

2. CONTRACTOR TO REFER TO MANUFACTURER INSTRUCTIONS FOR INSTALLATION AND
CARE GUIDES PRIOR TO BEGINNING SET UP AND INSTALL OF ALL SIDING, GLAZING
FLOORING, FINISHES, ETC.

3. METAL FLASHING AT TOP OF ROOF PARAPET FOR MAIN STRUSTURE TO BE 8" DEEP 
AND SHALL BE CHARCOAL BLACK IN COLOR WITH A MATTE FINISH.

4. METAL FLASHING AT TOP OF PARAPET TO STAIR TOWERS AND ELEVATOR TO MATCH 
THAT OF MAIN STRUCTURE IN COLOR AND SIZING AT 8" DEEP AND CHARCOAL BLACK.

Copyright 2021 FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.

240 North Wenatche Ave.
Wenatchee, WA 98801

(509) 293-5566    

www.fortearchitects.com  

JOB NO.

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECK BY

DWG ID

ADDRESS:

PHONE:    

WEBSITE:    

A3.2

EF

2018

2021 12 01

LS

DETAILED EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS - AREA "A" -
NORTH & EAST

S
o

C
o
. 

C
R

O
S
S
IN

G
SP

O
R

T
, 
LL

C

2
5

 S
. 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

W
en

at
ch

ee
, 

W
A

 9
8

8
0

1

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

DETAIL ELEVATION - AREA "A" - NORTH SIDE

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

DETAIL ELEVATION - AREA "A" - EAST SIDE

Revisions

Date No. Description



GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

AC AAAB

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

2ND LEVEL AREAS A & B
16'-0"

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

BABB

1

A3.7

1

A3.7

1

A3.8

1

A3.8

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

S
IL

L

2
'-
0

"

D

A117

GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

A1 A10A2 A3 A4 A5 A6 A7 A8 A9

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

2ND LEVEL AREAS A & B
16'-0"

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

2

A3.7

2

A3.7

3

A3.7

3

A3.7

3
A7.1

3
A7.1

2
A7.2

2
A7.2

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

S
IL

L

8
'-
0

"

S
IL

L

8
'-
0

"

S
IL

L

3
'-
0

"

S
IL

L

8
'-
0

"

B B B B

C C C C

C C

CC

C C BBBB

C C CC

A100

A

BUILDING "AREA" LEGEND

B C

ELEVATION NOTES:

1. SEE A3.10 FOR DETAILED PANEL CONFIGURATION DIMENSIONS AND STANDARDS

2. CONTRACTOR TO REFER TO MANUFACTURER INSTRUCTIONS FOR INSTALLATION AND
CARE GUIDES PRIOR TO BEGINNING SET UP AND INSTALL OF ALL SIDING, GLAZING
FLOORING, FINISHES, ETC.

3. METAL FLASHING AT TOP OF ROOF PARAPET FOR MAIN STRUSTURE TO BE 8" DEEP 
AND SHALL BE CHARCOAL BLACK IN COLOR WITH A MATTE FINISH.

4. METAL FLASHING AT TOP OF PARAPET TO STAIR TOWERS AND ELEVATOR TO MATCH 
THAT OF MAIN STRUCTURE IN COLOR AND SIZING AT 8" DEEP AND CHARCOAL BLACK.

Copyright 2021 FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.

240 North Wenatche Ave.
Wenatchee, WA 98801

(509) 293-5566    

www.fortearchitects.com  

JOB NO.

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECK BY

DWG ID

ADDRESS:

PHONE:    

WEBSITE:    

A3.3

EF

2018

2021 12 01

LS

DETAILED EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS - AREA "A" -
SOUTH & WEST

S
o

C
o
. 

C
R

O
S
S
IN

G
SP

O
R

T
, 
LL

C

2
5

 S
. 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

W
en

at
ch

ee
, 

W
A

 9
8

8
0

1

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

DETAIL ELEVATION - AREA "A" - SOUTH SIDE

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

DETAIL ELEVATION - AREA "A" - WEST SIDE

Revisions

Date No. Description



GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

A10 A9

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

C1

2ND LEVEL AREAS A & B
16'-0"

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

2

A3.8

2

A3.8

B2 B1

3

A3.8

3

A3.8

B109

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

2

A3.11

2

A3.11

3

A3.11

3

A3.11

L

I

STRIP LIGHTING

EXHAUST & 
MAKE-UP 
AIR DUCTS

-

---

-

---

-

---

-

---

GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

A10

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

C1

2ND LEVEL AREAS A & B
16'-0"

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

2

A3.8

2

A3.8

B2B1

3

A3.8

3

A3.8

B103

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

2

A3.11

2

A3.11

3

A3.11

3

A3.11

S
IL

L

2
'-
0

"

S
IL

L

5
'-
6
"

S
IL

L

2
'-
0

"

C CC

D E DDEED

G

K

G

STRIP LIGHTING

-

---

-

---

-

---

-

---

GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

A10

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

C1

2ND LEVEL AREAS A & B
16'-0"

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

2

A3.8

2

A3.8

B2 B1

3

A3.8

3

A3.8

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

2
'-
0

"

SIDEWALK
LEVEL

CROSS BRACING 
PER STRUCTURAL

-

---

-

---

-

---

-

---

GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

CGCF

2ND LEVEL AREAS A & B
16'-0"

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

BB

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

S
IL

L

2
'-
0

"

D

6
A8.12

GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

AC

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

2ND LEVEL AREAS A & B
16'-0"

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

BB

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

S
IL

L

2
'-
0

"

D

B

BUILDING "AREA" LEGEND

A C

Copyright 2021 FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.

240 North Wenatche Ave.
Wenatchee, WA 98801

(509) 293-5566    

www.fortearchitects.com  

JOB NO.

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECK BY

DWG ID

ADDRESS:

PHONE:    

WEBSITE:    

A3.4

EF

2018

2021 12 01

LS

DETAILED EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS - AREA "B" -
SOUTH, EAST & NORTH

S
o

C
o
. 

C
R

O
S
S
IN

G
SP

O
R

T
, 
LL

C

2
5

 S
. 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

W
en

at
ch

ee
, 

W
A

 9
8

8
0

1

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
3

DETAILED ELEVATION - AREA "B" - EAST SIDE

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

DETAIL ELEVATIONS - AREA "B" - WEST SIDE
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

2
PATIO ELEVATION - WEST FACING

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
4

PATIO ELEVATION - SOUTH FACING
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

5
PATIO ELEVATION - NORTH FACING

Revisions

Date No. Description



GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

CA CGCB CC CD CE CF

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

1

A3.9

1

A3.9

1

A3.8

1

A3.8

5
A7.4

5
A7.4

B110

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

D
H

4

A3.8

MEZZANINE LEVEL AREA C
16'-0"

CROSS BRACING 
PER STRUCTURAL

6
A8.12

GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

C1C5 C2C3C4

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

3

A3.8

2

A3.9

2

A3.9

3

A3.9

3

A3.9

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

S
IL

L

3
'-
0

"

B B B

B B B B

A A A A

C103

C104

C102

S
IL

L

2
'-
0

"

1

A3.12

BEARING PLATE(S) FOR 
ROOFTOP FLOOR TYP

AWNING LIGHTS BEHIND

MEZZANINE LEVEL AREA C
16'-0"

-

---

-

---

C

BUILDING "AREA" LEGEND

BA

ELEVATION NOTES:

1. SEE A3.10 FOR DETAILED PANEL CONFIGURATION DIMENSIONS AND STANDARDS

2. CONTRACTOR TO REFER TO MANUFACTURER INSTRUCTIONS FOR INSTALLATION AND
CARE GUIDES PRIOR TO BEGINNING SET UP AND INSTALL OF ALL SIDING, GLAZING
FLOORING, FINISHES, ETC.

3. METAL FLASHING AT TOP OF ROOF PARAPET FOR MAIN STRUSTURE TO BE 8" DEEP 
AND SHALL BE CHARCOAL BLACK IN COLOR WITH A MATTE FINISH.

4. METAL FLASHING AT TOP OF PARAPET TO STAIR TOWERS AND ELEVATOR TO MATCH 
THAT OF MAIN STRUCTURE IN COLOR AND SIZING AT 8" DEEP AND CHARCOAL BLACK.

Copyright 2021 FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.

240 North Wenatche Ave.
Wenatchee, WA 98801

(509) 293-5566    

www.fortearchitects.com  

JOB NO.

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECK BY

DWG ID

ADDRESS:

PHONE:    

WEBSITE:    

A3.5

EF

2018

2021 12 01

LS

DETAILED EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS - AREA "C" -
SOUTH & WEST

S
o

C
o
. 

C
R

O
S
S
IN

G
SP

O
R

T
, 
LL

C

2
5

 S
. 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

W
en

at
ch

ee
, 

W
A

 9
8

8
0

1

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

DETAIL ELEVATION - AREA "C" - NORTH SIDE

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

DETAIL ELEVATION - AREA "C" - EAST SIDE

Revisions

Date No. Description



GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

CACG CBCCCDCECF

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

1

A3.9

1

A3.9

1
A7.6

1
A7.6

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

S
IL

L

2
'-
0

"

S
IL

L

6
'-
0

"

A A

B B B B

BBBB

BB

5
'-
0

"

5
'-
0

"

C C

AWNING LIGHTS BEHIND
AWNING LIGHTS BEHIND

MEZZANINE LEVEL AREA C
16'-0"

GROUND LEVEL
0"

ROOFTOP
32'-6"

PARAPET
34'-8"

COLUMBIA ST.
2'-0"

C1 C5C2 C3 C4

3RD LEVEL
21'-3"

2

A3.9

2

A3.9

3

A3.9

3

A3.9

NEW ROOF
36'-0"

T.O.R.
48'-6"

1

A3.11

1

A3.11

S
IL

L

6
'-
0

"

S
IL

L

3
'-
0

"

C100

A A A A

C C

BB B B

C C C C

B B B B

CC

A A A A

BBBB

1

A3.12

BEARING PLATE(S) FOR 
ROOFTOP FLOOR TYP

AWNING LIGHTS BEHIND

MEZZANINE LEVEL AREA C
16'-0"

-

---

-

---

-

---

-

---

C

BUILDING "AREA" LEGEND

BA

ELEVATION NOTES:

1. SEE A3.10 FOR DETAILED PANEL CONFIGURATION DIMENSIONS AND STANDARDS

2. CONTRACTOR TO REFER TO MANUFACTURER INSTRUCTIONS FOR INSTALLATION AND
CARE GUIDES PRIOR TO BEGINNING SET UP AND INSTALL OF ALL SIDING, GLAZING
FLOORING, FINISHES, ETC.

3. METAL FLASHING AT TOP OF ROOF PARAPET FOR MAIN STRUSTURE TO BE 8" DEEP 
AND SHALL BE CHARCOAL BLACK IN COLOR WITH A MATTE FINISH.

4. METAL FLASHING AT TOP OF PARAPET TO STAIR TOWERS AND ELEVATOR TO MATCH 
THAT OF MAIN STRUCTURE IN COLOR AND SIZING AT 8" DEEP AND CHARCOAL BLACK.

Copyright 2021 FORTE ARCHITECTS, INC.

240 North Wenatche Ave.
Wenatchee, WA 98801

(509) 293-5566    

www.fortearchitects.com  

JOB NO.

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECK BY

DWG ID

ADDRESS:

PHONE:    

WEBSITE:    

A3.6

EF

2018

2021 12 01

LS

DETAILED EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS - AREA "C" -
NORTH & EAST

S
o

C
o
. 

C
R

O
S
S
IN

G
SP

O
R

T
, 
LL

C

2
5

 S
. 

C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 S
tr

ee
t

W
en

at
ch

ee
, 

W
A

 9
8

8
0

1

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

DETAIL ELEVATION - AREA "C" - SOUTH SIDE

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

DETAIL ELEVATION - AREA "C" - WEST SIDE

Revisions

Date No. Description



One Campbell Parkway, Suite A 1 East Wenatchee, WA 98802 1 Phone: 509.884-4700 Fax: 509.662-5151 1 www.cdrpa .org 

December 9, 2021 

To: All Floor Covering Contractors 

Re: Small Works Project 2021-75- Executive Flight Carpet Replacement 

The purpose of this letter is to inform you that the CDRPA is rejecting all bids received 
for the Executive Flight Carpet Replacement Project for which the invitation to bid was 
issued on November 18,2021, and due by Tuesday, December 07,2021, at 11:00 AM. 

The bids were rejected due to inaccurate product specifications. We are working on the 
necessary revision and will be issuing an invitation to bid for the revised project by the 
end of next week. 

Thank you for submitting a bid . We understand the time and effort required to submit a 
proposal and appreciate yours very much. We highly encourage you to submit a bid on 
the revised project once it is issued. 

Sirtcerely, 

fkwJ dL MJtttL 
Stacie de Mestre 
Public Works and Capital Projects Manager 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Donn Etherington, Commissioner, Chelan County Dist. 1 Jim Huffman, Commissioner, Douglas County Dist. 1 JC Baldwin, Commissioner, Chelan County Dist. 2 

W. Alan Loebsack, Commissioner, Douglas County Dist. 2 Mark Spurgeon, Commissioner, Douglas County Dist. 3 Rory Turner, Commissioner, Chelan County Dist. 3 



Lease Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

11/2/2021 C&B Aviation LLC (Hahn) Exec Flight Bldg Hangar M2M $350.00 

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

Eddy Hahn PMA Tie-Down 11/14/2021

None Reported for this Period

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Lease terms of five years duration or less.
Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.

Tenants Moving Out

Base
Rent/Month

$62.00 

Lease Renewals

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority - Lease Report

Leases & Renewals - Aviation Related

Reporting Period - November 2021

12/14/2021
New Leases 



Lease Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

7/1/2021 ABC Learning Industrial Bldg #6 12/1/2021 - 11/30/2022 $1,174.47 

11/30/2021 Chelan County Fire District #1
Columbia St & 

Orondo Ave
H1, H2, H3

Hold Harmless Agreement for                          
Training  Exercises

N/C

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Auto-no response Badger Mtn Brewing Bldg - Orondo Ave
Canopy Area, 

Parking, Outside 
Seating

1/1/2022 - 6/30/2022 $3,780.00 

11/22/2021 Masterchain 3835 SE 2nd St 3,300 1/1/2022 - 12/31/2022 $2,442.00 

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

None Reported for this Period

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Lease terms of five years duration or less.
Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.

Tenants Moving Out

Base
Rent/Month

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority - Lease Report

Leases & Renewals - CDRPA

Reporting Period - November 2021

12/14/2021
New Leases 

Lease Renewals



Lease Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

11/3/2021 JBe Marketing CTC, Suite 139 137 SQFT M2M $265.83 

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

None Reported for this Period

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Lease terms of five years duration or less.

Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.

Tenants Moving Out

Base

Rent/Month

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority - Lease Report

Leases & Renewals - CTC

Reporting Period - November 2021

12/14/2021

New Leases 

Lease Renewals

None Reported for this Period











Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events Updated 12/10/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attends RSVP arrangements if applicable

December 2021
December 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM  Board of Directors; staff

December 15 Wednesday CDRPA Holiday Party; 11:30 AM Highlander Golf Course Board; Staff; Consultants

December 15 Wednesday
DC Community Leadership Advisory Meeting - CTC; 2:30p (4th 
Weds) Date change to 12/15

December 15 Wednesday NCW Tech Alliance Board Meeting; 3:00 PM Commissioner Baldwin

December 21 Tuesday Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
Commissioner Spurgeon & 
Etherington

December 23 Thursday Christmas Holiday Observed Office Closed
December 24 Friday Christmas Holiday Observed Office Closed
December 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM  Board of Directors; staff CANCELLED
December 31 Friday New Years Day 2022 Observed/Office Closed  
2022

January 2022

January 9-13 Sun-Thursday AAAE 36th Annual Aviation Issues Conference; Kauai, HI
January 11 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff
January 12 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting Commissioner Huffman
January 13 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM Commissioner Baldwin
January 17 Monday Martin Luther King Jr. Holiday Office Closed

January 18 Tuesday Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
Commissioner Spurgeon & 
Etherington

January 19 Wednesday NCW Tech Alliance Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
January 25 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff
January 25 Tuesday WPPA Port Day Olympia
January 26 Wednesday Partner Breakfast;Convention Center; 7:30am-9am Center Confirmed John Mitchell Speaker confirmed

January 26 Wednesday
DC Community Leadership Advisory Meeting - CTC; 2:30p (4th 
Weds)

January 27 Thursday Ec. Dev. Lunch; Convention Center; 11:30am-1pm Center Confirmed John Mitchell Speaker confirmed

February 2022
February 8 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff
February 9 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting Commissioner Huffman
February 10 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM Commissioner Baldwin



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events Updated 12/10/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attends RSVP arrangements if applicable

February 15 Tuesday Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
Commissioner Spurgeon & 
Etherington

February 16 Wednesday NCW Tech Alliance Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
February 21 Monday President's Day Office Closed
February 22 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am

February 23 Wednesday
DC Community Leadership Advisory Meeting - CTC; 2:30p (4th 
Weds)

March 2022
March 3 Thursday Wen. Valley Chamber Annual Banquet Convention Center 

March 3-4 Thursday-Friday
ACI-NA/AAAE Washington Legislative Conference; 
Washington DC

March 8 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff
March 9 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting Commissioner Huffman
March 10 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM Commissioner Baldwin

March 15 Tuesday Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
Commissioner Spurgeon & 
Etherington

March 16 Wednesday NCW Tech Alliance Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
March 22 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff

March 23 Wednesday
DC Community Leadership Advisory Meeting - CTC; 2:30p (4th 
Weds)

April 2022
April 12 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff
April 13 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting Commissioner Huffman
April 13 Wednesday Partner Breakfast;Convention Center; 7:30am-9am Center Confirmed
April 14 Thursday Ec. Dev. Lunch; Convention Center; 11:30am-1pm Center Confirmed
April 14 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM Commissioner Baldwin

April 19 Tuesday Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
Commissioner Spurgeon & 
Etherington

April 20 Wednesday NCW Tech Alliance Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

April 27 Wednesday
DC Community Leadership Advisory Meeting - CTC; 2:30p (4th 
Weds)

April 29 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff

May 2022
May 4-6 Wed-Friday WPPA Spring Meeting; Skamania Lodge



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events Updated 12/10/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attends RSVP arrangements if applicable

May 9-11 WAMA 2022 Annual Conference; Sun Mt. Lodge, Winthrop
May 10 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff
May 11 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting Commissioner Huffman
May 12 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM Commissioner Baldwin

May 17 Tuesday Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
Commissioner Spurgeon & 
Etherington

May 18 Wednesday NCW Tech Alliance Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
May 24 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff

May 25 Wednesday
DC Community Leadership Advisory Meeting - CTC; 2:30p (4th 
Weds)

May 30 Monday Memorial Day Holiday Office Closed

June 2022
June 5-8 Sun-Tuesday AAAE 94th Annual Conference; Seattle
June 8-10 Wed-Friday WPPA Finance Seminar; Campbells Reort
June 8 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting Commissioner Huffman
June 9 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM Commissioner Baldwin
June 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff
June 15 Wednesday NCW Tech Alliance Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

June 21 Tuesday Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
Commissioner Spurgeon & 
Etherington

June 22 Wednesday
DC Community Leadership Advisory Meeting - CTC; 2:30p (4th 
Weds)

June 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff

July 2022
July 4 Monday 4th of July Holiday Office Closed
July 12 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff
July 13 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting Commissioner Huffman
July 14 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM Commissioner Baldwin

July 19 Tuesday Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
Commissioner Spurgeon & 
Etherington

July 20 Wednesday NCW Tech Alliance Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
July 26 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff

July 27 Wednesday
DC Community Leadership Advisory Meeting - CTC; 2:30p (4th 
Weds)



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events Updated 12/10/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attends RSVP arrangements if applicable
July 13 Wednesday Partner Breakfast;Convention Center; 7:30am-9am Center Confirmed
July 14 Thursday Ec. Dev. Lunch; Convention Center; 11:30am-1pm Center Confirmed

August 2022
August 9 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff
August 10 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting Commissioner Huffman
August 11 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM Commissioner Baldwin

August 16 Tuesday Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
Commissioner Spurgeon & 
Etherington

August 17 Wednesday NCW Tech Alliance Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
August 23 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff

August 24 Wednesday
DC Community Leadership Advisory Meeting - CTC; 2:30p (4th 
Weds)

September 2022
September 5 Monday Labor Day Office Closed
September 8 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM Commissioner Baldwin
September 13 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff
September 14 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting Commissioner Huffman

Septembr 20 Tuesday Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
Commissioner Spurgeon & 
Etherington

September 21 Wednesday NCW Tech Alliance Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
September 27 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff

September 28 Wednesday
DC Community Leadership Advisory Meeting - CTC; 2:30p (4th 
Weds)

October 2022
October 11 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff
October 12 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting Commissioner Huffman
October 13 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM Commissioner Baldwin

October 18 Tuesday Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
Commissioner Spurgeon & 
Etherington

October 19 Wednesday NCW Tech Alliance Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
October 25 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events Updated 12/10/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attends RSVP arrangements if applicable

October 26 Wednesday
DC Community Leadership Advisory Meeting - CTC; 2:30p (4th 
Weds) Cancel??? 

October 26 Wednesday Partner Breakfast;Convention Center; 7:30am-9am Center Confirmed
October 27 Thursday Ec. Dev. Lunch; Convention Center; 11:30am-1pm Center Confirmed

November 2022
November 8 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff
November 9 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting Commissioner Huffman
November 10 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM Commissioner Baldwin

November 15 Tuesday Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
Commissioner Spurgeon & 
Etherington

November 16 Wednesday NCW Tech Alliance Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
November 22 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff

November 23 Wednesday
DC Community Leadership Advisory Meeting - CTC; 2:30p (4th 
Weds)

November 24 Thursday Thanksgiving/Office Closed
November 25 Friday Thanksgiving/Office Closed

December 2022
December 8 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM Commissioner Baldwin
December 13 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff
December 14 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting Commissioner Huffman

December 20 Tuesday Wenatchee Valley Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
Commissioner Spurgeon & 
Etherington

December 21 Wednesday NCW Tech Alliance Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
December 23 Friday Christmas Eve Holiday Observed Office Closed ?
December 26 Monday Christmas Day Holiday Observed Office Closed ?
December 27 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 am  Board of Directors; staff

December 28 Wednesday
DC Community Leadership Advisory Meeting - CTC; 2:30p (4th 
Weds)

2023

January 2023
January 2 Monday New Years Day 2023 Observed Office Closed ?


	Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central Washington
	Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
	Meeting Agenda
	December 14th, 2021

	V. 4 CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-24 CDRPA Delegation of Authority 2022 and Memo.pdf
	I. PREAMBLE
	A. The following policy is adopted by the Board of Directors for the purpose of establishing the administrative powers and duties of the Chief Executive Officer who is responsible for Port Authority operations. Any Board directives or initiatives shal...
	B. The phrase “administration and Port Authority operations”, as used herein, means the regular day-to-day business of the Port Authority, including but not limited to:  operating, maintaining, and administering all of its properties, leasehold proper...
	C. The Chief Executive Officer shall inform the Board regarding significant information, incidents, and business transactions by methods agreeable to the Board.  The Chief Executive Officer shall report to the Board those actions made in reliance on t...

	II. FINANCIAL
	A. Budgets – The adoption of Port Authority budgets, including supplemental budgets, are the responsibility of the Board of Directors.  The Chief Executive Officer has no authority to adopt budgets, but the Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible...
	B. Expenditures – The Chief Executive Officer is given the authority to spend Port Authority funds without prior Board approval subject to:
	1. The expenditure must fall within a budgeted expense category.
	2. The expenditure must not cause the amount of a budgeted expense category to be exceeded.
	3. Expenditures in accord with Emergency Public Works Contracts.
	4. Any applicable financial limits established by this Resolution.

	C. Management of Port Authority Finances – The Chief Executive Officer or the Director of Finance and Administration is authorized to transfer funds between operating funds and investment funds to meet Port Authority financial obligations.
	D. Imprest Working Funds (Petty Cash/Change Funds) - The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to establish imprest working funds (petty cash/change funds), provided that the total cumulative amount of all such funds does not exceed $2,000.
	E. Banking Services – The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to negotiate for banking services and enter into agreements for such services.  Procedures shall be established concerning the deposit/disbursal of Port Authority funds recognizing the re...
	F. Investments – The investment of Port Authority funds, which are those funds not required for immediate expenditures, shall be invested by the Port Authority Treasurer, in accordance with applicable laws relating to investment of public funds and co...
	G. Other Obligations – The Chief Executive Officer shall have the authority to incur obligations and make commitments on behalf of the Port Authority, so long as they are for budgeted items, except, the Chief Executive Officer:
	1. May not issue promissory notes.
	2. May not issue bonds.
	3. May not incur obligations or make commitments in excess of those amounts specifically provided for elsewhere in this resolution.


	III. POLICY GOVERNING REAL PROPERTY
	A. Types of Agreements – The following directives apply to all agreements for use of Port Authority real property, including but not limited to leases, license agreements, concession agreements, rental agreements, operating agreements, memorandums of ...
	B. Lease Arrangements – All real property, when available for leasing, shall be leased only under an appropriate written instrument approved by the Board of Directors.  Except where the Board has delegated authority to the Chief Executive Officer here...
	C. Chief Executive Officer’s Authority to Sign Lease and Rental Agreements without Prior Board Approval – The Chief Executive Officer may, without prior Board approval, execute lease and rental agreements subject to all of the following conditions:
	1. Agreements having a term (including any options) of five years duration or less and lease payments of $5,000 per month or less (not including state leasehold tax) and the Port Authority’s financial obligation for building improvements does not exce...
	2. The Port Authority’s standard agreement form is used, except for provisions not applicable and state and federal leases that require the use of the tenant’s lease form as long as the content of the lease form does not materially change the Port Aut...
	3. The appropriate lease surety must be in place which shall be defined as a minimum of one month’s rental, not including state leasehold tax.
	4. The amount of rent shall be in accordance with rental rate objectives of the Board.
	5. The use to which the property may be put by the tenant shall be expressly stated and shall be in accordance with the goals, directives, and policies adopted by the Board for the same or similar Port Authority property or properties.
	6. The Chief Executive Officer shall provide the Board with a monthly written report of all agreements executed.

	D. Lease Modifications; Extensions – The Chief Executive Officer may, without prior Board approval, make minor modification to existing leases including payment deferrals, due dates for payments, adjustments to the leased premises, and the like, where...
	E. Sublease Procedures – Leases, concession agreements, operating agreements, and related contracts between the Port Authority and its tenants, and other parties shall include restriction on the subleasing and require at a minimum the prior written co...
	F. Lease Renewals – The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to renew leases provided:  such renewals are provided for in the current lease; all other substantive terms of the lease remain unchanged; rental adjustments provided for in the lease are m...
	G. Lease Enforcement and Lease Terminations – The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to enforce all terms and conditions of Port Authority leases.  The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to issue all appropriate notices of default and/or notices...
	H. Realtors Compensation Program – The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to make payments for real estate services consistent with the Board of Directors adopted Real Estate Guidelines per Motion #09-10-19 as may be amended.
	I. Other Documents – The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute the following instruments, subject to the terms specified herein:
	1. Temporary and permanent easements for purposes of utility installments only. For easements granted by the Port Authority, all easements will require the grantee at its own expense to relocate, lower or otherwise protect the utility to accommodate f...
	2. Business Licenses and Licenses to Operate.
	3. If the Board has previously approved a grant application, the Chief Executive Officer may execute all related agreements associated with the Port Authority obtaining local, state or federal grant funds, unless said grant exceeds $1.5 million, which...
	4. Binding site plans, short plats, building permits, and similar documents, and applications therefore, consistent with Port Authority master plans or otherwise where the Board has approved the subject development.
	5. Changes in name of responsible party to the lease if all other conditions including primary ownership, remain the same.
	6. Lease assignments for purposes of collateral.
	7. Estoppels, attornments and non-disturbance agreements.
	8. Permits ancillary to the normal operation of the Port Authority.
	9. Liquor Control Board forms related to tenants leasing Port Authority property.
	10. Landlord Waiver and Consent agreements subject to legal counsel review.
	11. Assignments of agreements for use of Port Authority real property (as defined in Section 4, III. A above) where the assignment does not alter the underlying terms of the agreement.
	12. Authority to negotiate and enter into Right of Entry/Property Access Agreements to allow prospects to conduct initial investigations regarding any real property managed by the Regional Port.
	13. Authority to enter into Confidentiality Agreements with prospective businesses, only when absolutely necessary and subject to legal counsel review. Board shall be notified when said agreements are signed.
	14. Authority to manage Pangborn Airport Terminal Building Parking Lot consistent with Board policies including waiving late fees.


	IV. POLICY GOVERNING LEASE SURETY, SURETY BONDS, RENTAL DEPOSITS, AND INSURANCE POLICIES
	A. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to take all necessary actions on behalf of the Board in connection with lease surety, lease surety bonds, rental deposits, or insurance coverage required pursuant to any leases of the Port Authority, includ...
	1. Where the lease is not in default, to release any surety, surety bond, or rental deposit where an adequate substitute surety or rental deposit has been provided.
	2. To approve any surety, surety bond, rental deposit, certificate of insurance, or insurance policies submitted in fulfillment of the requirements of any lease, including substitute or replacement coverage for any terminated bond, surety, or rental i...
	3. To approve any substitute or modifications of surety or insurance coverage, and to release any surety or insurance company when substitute or replacement insurance coverage has been provided in connection with any outstanding lease of the Port Auth...


	V. POLICY GOVERNING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ’S AUTHORITY FOR PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS AND SALES
	A. Property Acquisitions – When the Board authorizes the acquisition of real property by negotiated purchase or condemnation and has entered an agreement, the Chief Executive Officer shall take all necessary steps, including appraisals, environmental ...
	B. Property Sales – When the Board authorizes the sale of Port Authority real property and has entered an agreement, the Chief Executive Officer shall take all necessary steps to complete the transaction, including but not limited to ordering appraisa...
	C. Amendments – When the Board has entered a purchase and sale agreement, the Chief Executive Officer may approve minor modifications to the agreement, including but not limited to extensions to feasibility periods, changes to the closing date, minor ...

	VI. POLICY GOVERNING CONTRACTS FOR PERFORMANCE OF PUBLIC WORK
	A. Public Work of $50,000 or less – The Chief Executive Officer may, without prior Board approval, approve plans, specifications and estimates, seek bids and execute small works roster contracts up to $50,000 per project subject to the project appeari...
	B. Public Work between $50,001 and $100,000 – The Chief Executive Officer may, without prior Board approval, approve plans, specifications and estimates, and seek bids on public works contracts (including small works roster contracts) between $50,001 ...
	E. Emergency Public Works Contracts – When any emergency shall require the immediate execution of a contract for work, the Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to the Procedures of RCW 39.04.020 and 39.04.280 (as it may be amended or succeeded), is autho...
	F. Change Orders – Where contracts for the performance of work have been awarded and under which the work is in progress, and individual changes in plans and/or specifications are necessitated in order to properly accomplish the work, the Chief Execut...
	1. Change orders are within the project budget established by the Board.
	2. The estimated cost of the individual changes in plans and/or specifications will not exceed 10% of the established project budget.  However, when an individual change order issued under any contract shall cause the total cash amount of change order...
	3. The contract provides for issuance of change orders.
	4. The individual change order has been approved and certified by the project architect or engineer as being necessary to the proper accomplishment of the work called for in the basic contract.
	5. Any time extension for completion of said contract which accompanies said change order does not exceed sixty (60) days.


	VII. POLICY GOVERNING ACQUISITION OF MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, AND SUPPLIES; UNIT PRICE CONTRACTS
	A. The Chief Executive Officer shall have the responsibility for following all required statutory procedures, where applicable, in connection with (i) all contracts for the acquisition of utilities, materials, equipment, and supplies and (ii) unit pri...
	1. The contract or purchase order price does not exceed Fifty Thousand ($50,000) in a calendar year, or if specifically identified in the annual budget, the amount shown in such budget, and the contract provides for a term of no more than three years,...
	2. Unit price contracts must be competitively bid based on estimated quantities of the anticipated types of work or trades involved, and specify how the Port Authority will issue work assignments, work orders, or task authorizations.  Unit price contr...
	3. Unless otherwise required by law, the Chief Executive Officer shall determine whether and to what extent a performance bond is necessary.

	B. Emergency Contracts for Acquisition of Materials, Equipment, Supplies, and Services – When an emergency shall require the immediate acquisition of materials, equipment, supplies, and services, the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to make a fin...
	C. Repair and Maintenance of Equipment – The Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible for equipment repair and maintenance and, to that end, may use the Port Authority’s own labor forces or may have work done by contract.  The Chief Executive Offi...

	VIII. COMPETITIVE BIDDING REQUIREMENTS – EXEMPTIONS (See RCW 39.04.280)
	1. Purchases that are clearly and legitimately limited to a single source of supply.
	2. Purchases involving special facilities or market conditions.
	3. Purchases of insurance or bonds.
	4. Public works in the event of an emergency.

	IX. ARCHITECTURAL, ENGINEERING, AND TECHNICAL SERVICES, INCLUDING SURVEYORS, INTERIOR DESIGNERS AND LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS
	X. AMENDMENTS TO ARCHITECTURAL, ENGINEERING, PROFESSIONAL, CONSULTANT AND PERSONAL SERVICES:
	XI. PERSONAL SERVICES
	XII. LITIGATION
	A. Management and Supervision of Litigations – The Chief Executive Officer and the Port Authority’s Legal Counsel (appointed by the Board) shall be responsible for the procedures necessary for management and supervision of all litigation in which the ...
	B. Special Legal Services – The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to retain such other special counsel at fees as may be negotiated to assist in the handling of any claims, litigation, or other matters necessary to attend to the legal affairs of t...
	C. Engagement of Experts – The Chief Executive Officer may engage or cause to be engaged, such experts as may be necessary for the orderly support of claims or litigation in which the Port Authority has a direct or indirect interest, without limitatio...
	D. Commencing Lawsuits – The Chief Executive Officer may not commence litigation without the prior approval of the Board.

	XIII. POLICY GOVERNING ADJUSTMENT AND WRITE-OFF OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
	A. Definition of “Write Off” – The term “write-off” means the adjustment of the accounting records of the Port Authority to reflect the fact that the account is uncollectible in the normal course of operations.  The Chief Executive Officer may authori...
	B. Procedures – The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to establish procedures for and to write off any uncollectible account which does not exceed the sum of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) subject to the following general guidelines:
	1. Prior to writing off any account receivable or uncollectible, the Chief Executive Officer shall be satisfied that every reasonable effort has been made by the Port Authority to accomplish the collection of the account.
	2. Any account in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) which is deemed to be uncollectible shall be referred to the Board for final write-off, with the exception of any account that has filed for bankruptcy which the Chief Executive Officer may wr...
	3. The Chief Executive Officer shall provide the Board once per month a listing of all accounts that are 90 days past due.


	XIV. POLICY GOVERNING TRAVEL OF EMPLOYEES AND OTHER AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES OF THE PORT AUTHORITY
	A. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to approve travel by employees and/or other authorized representatives of the Port Authority in order to effectuate necessary Port Authority operations, in conformity to the travel policy adopted by the Boa...

	XV. POLICY GOVERNING STAFF AND EMPLOYEE ADMINISTRATION
	A. The Chief Executive Officer shall have the authority to manage all personnel matters for Port Authority employees and staff which include hiring, firing, training, grievance procedures, employee benefits, and administration of the employee salary s...

	XVI. UTILIZATION OF PORT AUTHORITY EMPLOYEES
	A. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to use necessary Port Authority employees for operations and maintenance of facilities.
	B. The Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible for obtaining prior Board approval for work projects which are new construction or major modifications of Port Authority facilities to be carried out by Port Authority crews when the total estimated ...

	XVII. RULES AND REGULATIONS
	XVIII. POLICY GOVERNING SALE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY
	A. Sale of Property Pursuant to RCW 53.08.090  - The Chief Executive Officer is authorized, pursuant to RCW 53.08.090, to sell and convey surplus personal property of the Port Authority subject to the following conditions:
	1. That the market value of such personal property does not exceed $10,000 as may be increased by the statute; and
	2. That prior to any such sale or conveyance, the Chief Executive Officer shall itemize and list the property to be sold and make written certification to the Board that the listed property is no longer needed for Port Authority purposes;
	3. That offers for purchase are solicited from at least three (3) parties whenever possible or placed in a public auction;
	4. That any large block of such property having a value in excess of $10,000 shall not be divided into components of a lesser value and sold unless done so by public competitive bid; and
	5. That in no case shall surplus personal property be sold to any Port Authority official or employee or members of their families without the specific approval of the Board.


	XIX. INSURANCE PROGRAMS
	XX. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS
	XXIII. REIMBURSABLE SERVICES
	XXIV. GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS CONTRACTS
	XXV. ABSENCE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
	XXVI. BOARD RETAINED AUTHORITY

	X. CDRPA Event Calendar.pdf
	Sheet1




